
Lance J.M. Steinhart 
Attorney At Law 

6455 East Johns Crossing 
Suite 285 

Duluth, Georgia 30097 

Also Admitted in New York 
and Maryland 

Telephone: (770) 232-9200 
Facsimile: (770) 232-9208 

September 21, 2000 

-. 
. . t- r,. 

Dear SirMadam: 

Enclosed please find one o r i d  and six (6) copies of T-NETK Internet Services, Inc.'s 
Application for Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of 
Florida, along with an original and six (6) copies of T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc.'s proposed t d .  

I also have enclosed a check in the amount of $250.00 payable to the Florida Public Service 
Commission to cover the cost of filing these documents. 

Please return a stamped copy of the extra copy of this letter in the enclosed preaddressed 
prepaid envelope. 

If you have any questions regarding the application or the tariff, please do not hesitate to call 
me. Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Attorney for T-NETk Internet Services, Inc. 

Enclosures 
cc: Nancy K. Lee 



** ** 

A. This form is used for an original application for a certificate and for approval of 
sale, assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In case of a sale, assignment 
or transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or 
transferee (See Appendix A). 

Respond to each item requested in the application and appendices. If an item is 
not applicable, please explain why. 

Use a separate sheet for each answer, which will not fit the allotted space. 

If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Communications 
Bureau of Service Evaluation 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Gunter Building 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(904) 413-6600 

E. Once completed, submit the original and six (6 )  copies of this form along with a 
non-rehndable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Administration 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Gunter Building 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(904) 413-6251 

FORM PSC/CMU 3 1 (1 1/91) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 
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1. Select what type of business your company will be conducting (check all that apply): 

( X I  Facilities based carrier - company owns and operates or 
plans to own and operate telecommunications switches and 
transmission facilities in Florida. 

0 Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to 
provide alternative operator services for IXCs; or toll 
operator services to call aggregator locations; or 
clearinghouse services to bill such calls. 

Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more 
switches but primarily leases the transmission facilities of 
other carriers. Bills its own customer base for services 
used. 

( X I  

0 Switchless rebiller - company has no switch or 
transmission facilities but may have a billing computer. 
Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk discounts from underlying 
carrier. Rebills end users at a rate above its discount but 
generally below the rate end users would pay for 
unaggregated traffic. 

Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts 
with unafiliated entities to obtain bulklvolume discounts 
under multi-location discount plans from certain underlying 
carriers. Then offers the resold service by enrolling 
unafiliated customers. 

0 

( X I  Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that 
purchases 800 access from an underlying carrier or 
unaffiliated entity for use with prepaid debit card service 
and/or encodes the cards with personal identification 
numbers. 
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2. 

3. 

4. 

5 .  

6 .  

7. 

8. 

This is an application for (check one): 

( X )  Original Authority (New company). 
0 
0 

0 

Approval of Transfer (To another certificated company). 
Approval of Assignment of existing certificate (To a 
noncertificated company). 
Approval for transfer of control (To another certificated 
company). 

Name of corporation, partnership, cooperative, joint venture or sole proprietorship: 

T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 

Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

National address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state and zip 
code): 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 

Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state and zip 
code): 

None 

Structure of organization; 

( ) Individual ( ) Corporation 
( X ) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership 
( ) Other 

If applicant is an individual or partnership, please give name, title and address of sole 
proprietor or partners. Not Applicable 

(a) Provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited partnership statute 
(Chapter 620.160 FS), if applicable. 

Indicate if the individual or any of the partners have previously been: 

(1) 

(b) 

adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any 
felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may result from 
pending proceedings. 

FORMPSC/CMU 31 (11/91) 
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A 

(2 )  officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida 
certificated telephone company. If yes, give name of company and 
relationship. If no longer associated with company, give reason 
why not. 

FORM PSC/CMU 3 1 (1 1/91) 
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9. If incorporated, please give: 

(a) Proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the applicant has authority to 
operate in Florida. 

Corporate charter number: 

Name and address of the company's Florida registered agent 

TCS Corporate Services, Inc. 
1406 Hays Street, Suite #2 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Provide proof of compliance with the fictitious name statute (Chapter 
865.09 FS), if applicable. 

Fictitious name registration number: 

Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest 
stockholders have previously been: 

(1) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any 
felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may result from 
pending proceedings. 

No. 

officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida 
certificated telephone company. If yes, give name of company and 
relationship. If no longer associated with company, give reason 
why not. 

No. 

(2) 

FORM PSC/CMU 3 1 (1 1/91) 
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10. Who will serve as liaison with the Commission in regard to (please give name, title, 
address and telephone number): 

(a) The application; 

Lance J.M. Steinhart, Regulatory Counsel 
6455 East Johns Crossing, Suite 285 
Duluth, GA 30097 
770-232-9200 

(b) Official Point of Contact for the ongoing operations of the company; 

Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President of Regulatory and Billing 
Services 
T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 
67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 801 12 
(303) 790-91 11 

(c) Tariff; 

Lance J.M. Steinhart, Regulatory Counsel 
6455 East Johns Crossing, Suite 285 
Duluth, GA 30097 
770-232-9200 

(d) Complaints/Inquiries from customers; 

Tim Russi, Vice President - Client Services 
T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. 
67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 801 12 
(800) 53 1-4245 

11. List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) Has operated as an interexchange carrier 

None 

(b) Has applications pending to be certificated as an interexchange 
camer. 

Applicant is in the process of filing Applications throughout the 
United States. 

FORMPSC/CMU31 (11/91) 
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(c) Is certificated to operate as an interexchange carrier. 

Iowa, Michigan, Montana, Texas, Utah and Virginia 

Has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange carrier and the 
circumstances involved. 

(d) 

None. 

(e) Has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications 
statutes and the circumstances involved. 
None. 

(0 Has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, 
local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the 
circumstances involved. 

None. 

12. What services will the applicant offer to other certificated telephone companies: 

( ) Facilities ( ) Operators 
( ) Billing and Collection ( ) Sales 
( ) Maintenance 
( ) Other: 

None. 

13. Do you have a marketing program? 

Yes. 

14. Will your marketing program: 
( X ) Pay commissions? 
( ) Offer sales franchises? 
( ) Offer multi-level sales incentives? 
( ) Offer other sales incentives? 

FORMPSC/CMU 31 (11/91) 
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15. Explain any of the offers checked in question 14 (To whom, what amount, type of 
franchise, etc.). 

Applicant will pay commissions to sales representatives. 

Who will receive the bills for your service (Check all that apply)? 16. 

( X ) Residential customers ( X ) Business customers 
( ) PATS providers ( ) PATS station end-users 
( ) Hotels & motels ( ) Hotel & motel guests 
( ) Universities ( ) Univ. dormitory residents 
( ) Other (specify): 

17. Please provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services, and if 
not who will the billed patty contact to ask questions about the bill 
(provide name and phone number) and how is this information provided? 

Applicant's name and toll free number will appear on all end-users' 
bills. 

Name and address of the firm who will bill for your service 

The Company intends to direct bill customers utilizing real-time 
completed call detail information from its underlying carriers. 

(h) 

18. Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has the 
following capabilities to provide interexchange telecommunications services in Florida. 

A. Financial capability. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (1 1/91) 
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Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies: 
The application &dLmnkm ' the applicant's financial statements for the most recent 3 
years, including: 

1. the balance sheet 

2. income statement 

3. statement of retained earning 

Further, which can include supporting documentation, regarding the 
following should be provided to show financial capability. 

1. Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 
to provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 
to maintain the requested service. 

Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 
to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

2. 

3. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial 
statements, a projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit 
bureau reports, and descriptions of business relationships with financial 
institutions. 

If available, the financial statements should be audited financial statements. If the 
applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall be so stated. The 
unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer. The signatures should 

B. Managerial capability 

See Attached. 

C. Technical capability. 

Applicant will use the network services of its underlying carrier 
to provide services to customers in the State of Florida. 

FORM PSClCMU 3 1 (1 1/91) 
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19. Please submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin operation. Use 
the format required by Commission Rule 25-24.482 (example enclosed). 

See Attached. 

The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services (Check all that 20. 
apply): 

MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 
Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

MTS with route specific rates per minute 
Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (Le. not distance sensitive) 
Method of access is FGA 
Method of access is FGB 
Method of access is FGD 
Method of access is 800 

MTS for pay telephone service providers 

Block-of-time calling plan (Reach out Florida, Ring America, etc.) 

800 Service (Toll free) 

WATS type service (Bulk or volume discount) 
Method of access is via dedicated facilities 
Method of access is via switched facilities 

Private Line services (Channel Services) 
(For ex. 1.544 mbs., DS-3, etc.) 

FORMPSC/CMU31 (11/91) 
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_X_ Travel Service 
- 

2L 
Method of access is 950 
Method of access is 800 

- 900service 

- Operator Services 
- Available to presubscribed customers 
- 

- Available to inmates 

Available to non presubscrihed customers (for example to patrons of hotels, 
students in universities, patients in hospitals) 

Services included are: 

- Station assistance 
- Person to Person assistance 
- Directory assistance 
- Operator verify and interrupt 
- Conference Calling 

21. What does the end user dial for each of the interexchange carrier services that were 
checked in services included (above). 

1 (or 101XxXX) +area code+number or 1-800-XXX-XXXX 

21. 1L Other: 

FORMPSC/CMU 31 (11/91) 
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** APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATEMENT * * 

1. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone 
companies must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount o f .  15 of one 

Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual 
assessment fee of $50 is required. 

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay 
a gross receipts tax of two and one-half oercent on all intra and interstate 
business. 

SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra 
and interstate revenues. 

of its gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. 

2. 

3. 

4. APPLICATION FEE: A non-refbndable application fee of $250.00 must he 
submitted with the application. 

RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: I acknowledge receipt and 
understanding of the Florida Public Service Commission's Rules and Orders 
relating to my provision of interexchange telephone service in Florida. I also 
understand that it is my responsibility to comply with all current and fbture 
Commission requirements regarding AAV service. 

ACCURACY OF APPLICATION: By my signature below, I the undersigned 
owner or officer of the named utility in the application, attest to the accuracy of 
the information contained in this application and associated attachments. I have 
read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
information is a true and correct statement. Further, I am aware that pursuant to 
Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, whoever knowingly makes a false statement in 
writing with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his 
official duty shall he guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree. 

5. 

6. 

,Aid& 5 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 
Scott Spie 

sip. 2, L0C.c) 

Date 

Executive Vice President - Technology 
Title 

(303) 790-91 11 
Telephone No. 

FORM PSC/CMU 3 1 (1 1/91) 

FL IXC App 
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** APPENDIX B ** 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 

A statement of how the Commission can be assured of the security of the customer's 
deposits and advance payments may be responded to in one of the following ways (applicant 
please check one): 

( X )  The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect payments for 
service more than one month in advance. 

0 The applicant will file with the Commission and maintain a surety 
bond in an amount equal to the current balance of deposits and 
advance payments in excess of one month. (Bond must accompany 
application.) 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Executive Vice President - Technolorn 
Title 

FORMPSC/CMU31 (11191) 

FL IXC App 

(303) 790-91 11 
Telephone No. 
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LIST OF A'ITACHMENTS 

PROPOSED TARIFF 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CAPABKITY 



PROPOSED TARIFF 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 1 

TITLE SHEET 

FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF 

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and 

rates applicable to the furnishing of service or facilities for 

Telecommunications Services furnished by T-NETIX Internet 

Services, Inc. ("T-NETIX"), with principal offices at 67 

Inverness Drive East, Englewood, Colorado 80112. This tariff 

applies for telecommunications services furnished within the 

State of Florida. This tariff is on file with the Florida Public 

Service Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal 

business hours, at the company's principal place of business. 

Issued: September 26,  2000  Effective: 
B y :  Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado E0112 
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T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 2 

CHECK SHEET 
The sheets of this tariff are effective as of the date shown 

at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised 
sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original 
tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom 
right-hand side of this sheet. 

SHEET _______ 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 ~~ 

24 
25 
26 
21 
28 
29 

REVIS ION 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

* Original or Revised Sheet Included in the most recent 
tariff filing 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

Title Sheet .............................................. 1 
Check Sheet .............................................. 2 
Table of Contents ........................................ 3 

Tariff Format ............................................ 5 
Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations ........................ 8 
Section 3 - Description of Service ...................... 20 
Section 4 - Rates ....................................... 2 1  

Symbols .................................................. 4 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive V i c e  President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 4 

SYMBOLS 

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes 
indicated below: 

D - Delete or Discontinue 
I - Change Resulting In An 

Increase to A Customer's Bill 
M - Moved from Another Tariff Location 
N - New 
R - Change Resulting In A 

T - Change in Text or Regulation 
Reduction to A Customer's Bill 

But No Change In Rate or Charge 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 5 

TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Sheet Numbering: Sheet numbers appear in the upper 
right corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequentially. 
However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. When a 
new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is 
added. For example, a new sheet added between pages 11 and 12 
would be page 11.1. 

B. Sheet Revision Numbers: Revision numbers also appear in 
the upper right corner of each sheet where applicable. These 
numbers are used to indicate the most current page version on 
file with the Commission. For example, 4th Revised Sheet 13 
cancels 3rd Revised Sheet 13. Consult the Check Sheet for the 
sheets currently in effect. 

paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its 
next higher level: 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence: There are nine levels of 

L .  
2.1 
2.1.1 
2.1.1 .A 
2.1.1 .A. 1 
2.1.1 .A. 1. (a) 
2.1.1.A.1. (a) .I 
2.1.1.A.1. (a) .I. (i) 
2.1.1.A.1. (a) .I. (1). (1) 

D. Check Sheets: When a tariff filing is made with the 
Commission, an updated Check Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. 
The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff, with a 
cross reference to the current Revision Number. When new sheets 
are added, the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. 
All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an 
asterisk ( * ) .  There will be no other symbols used on this sheet 
if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc. 
remains the same, just revised revision levels on some sheets). 
The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find 
out if a particular sheet is the most current on Commission file. 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 
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T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 6 

SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Access Line - An arrangement from a local exchange telephone 
company or other common carrier, using either dedicated or 
switched access, which connects a Customer's location to the 
Company's location or switching center. 

Authorization Code - A numerical code, one or more of which 
may be assigned to a Customer, to enable the Company to identify 
the origin of the Customer so it may rate and bill the call. 
Automatic number identification (ANI) is used as the 
authorization code wherever possible. 

Commission - Used throughout this tariff to mean the Florida 
Public Service Commission. 

Customer - The person, firm, corporation or other legal 
entity which orders the services of the Company or purchases a 
Company Prepaid Calling Card and/or originates prepaid calls 
using such cards, and is responsible for the payment of charges 
and for compliance with the Company's tariff regulations. 

Company or T-NETIX - Used throughout this tariff to mean T- 
NETIX Internet Services, Inc., a Colorado Corporation. 

Dedicated Access - The Customer gains entry to the Company's 
services by a direct path from the Customer's location to the 
Company's point of presence. 

Holiday - New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Holidays shall be billed at 
the evening rate from 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. After 11 p.m., the lower 
night rate shall go into effect. 

Prepaid Account - An inventory of Telecom Units purchased in 
advance by the Customer, and associated with one and only one 
Authorization Code as contained in a specific Prepaid Calling 
Card. 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 7 

Prepaid Callinq Card - A card issued by the Company, 
containina an Authorization Code which identifies a specific 
Prepaid Account of Telecom Units, which enables calls-to be 
processed, account activity to be logged, and balances to be 
maintained, on a prepayment basis. 

Resp. Orq - Responsible Organization or entity identified by 
an 800 service Customer that manages and administers records in 
the 800 database and management system. 

Switched Access - The Customer gains entry to the Company's 
services by a transmission line that is switched through the 
local exchange carrier to reach the Company's point of presence. 

Telecom Unit - A measurement of telecommunications service 
equivalent to one minute of usage between any two points within 
the State of Florida. 

Telecommunications - The transmission of voice 
communications or, subject to the transmission capabilities of 
the services, the transmission of data, facsimile, signaling, 
metering, or other similar communications. 

Underlyinq Carrier - The telecommunications carrier whose 
network facilities Drovide the technical capability and capacity 
necessary for the tEansmission and reception of Customer 
telecommunications traffic. 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

61 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 8 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.1 Undertakina of the Company 

This tariff contains the regulations and rates 
applicable to intrastate interexchange 
telecommunications services provided by the Company for 
telecommunications between points within the State of 
Florida. Services are furnished subject to the 
availability of facilities and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this tariff in compliance with 
limitations set forth in the Commission's rules. The 
Company's services are provided on a statewide basis 
and are not intended to be limited geographically. The 
Company offers service to all those who desire to 
purchase service from the Company consistent with all 
of the provisions of this tariff. Customers interested 
in the Company's services shall file a service 
application with the Company which fully identifies the 
Customer, the services requested and other information 
requested by the Company. The Company may act as the 
Customer's agent for ordering access connection 
facilities provided by other carriers or entities when 
authorized by the Customer, to allow connection of a 
Customer's location to a service provided by the 
Company. The Customer shall be responsible for all 
charges due for such service arrangement. 

2.1.1 The services provided by the Company are not 
part of a joint undertaking with any other 
entity providing telecommunications channels, 
facilities, or services, but may involve the 
resale of the Message Toll Services (MTS) and 
Wide Area Telecommunications Services (WATS) 
of underlying common carriers subject to the 
jurisdiction of this Commission. 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 9 

2.1.2 The rates and regulations contained in this 
tariff apply only to the services furnished 
by the Company and do not apply, unless 
otherwise specified, to the lines, 
facilities, or services provided by a local 
exchange telephone company or other common 
carriers for use in accessing the services of 
the Company. 

2.1.3 The Company reserves the right to limit the 
length of communications, to discontinue 
furnishing services, or limit the u s e  of 
service necessitated by conditions beyond its 
control, including, without limitation: lack 
of satellite or other transmission medium 
capacity; the revision, alteration or 
repricing of the Underlying Carrier's 
tariffed offerings; or when the use of 
service becomes or is in violation of the law 
or the provisions of this tariff. 

2.2 Use and Limitations of Services 

2.2.1 The Company's services may be used for any 
lawful purpose consistent with the 
transmission and switching parameters of the 
telecommunications facilities utilized in the 
provision of services, subject to any 
limitations set forth in this Section 2.2. 

2.2.2 The use of the Company's services to make 
calls which might reasonably be expected to 
frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another 
or in such a way as to unreasonably interfere 
with u s e  by others is prohibited. 

2.2.3 The use of the Company's services without 
payment for service or attempting to avoid 
payment for service by fraudulent means or 
devices, schemes, false or invalid numbers, 
or false calling or credit cards is 
prohibited. 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
By: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 

61 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 
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T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. PSC TARIFF NO. 1 
ORIGINAL SHEET 10 

2.2.4 The Company's services are available for use 
twenty-four hours per day, seven days per 
week. 

2.2.5 The Company does not transmit messages, but 
the services may be used for that purpose. 

2.2.6 The Company's services may be denied for 
nonpayment of charges or for other violations 
of this tariff subject to Section 2.5.1 
herein. 

2.2.1 Customers shall not use the service provided 
under this tariff for any unlawful purpose. 

2.2.8 The Customer is responsible for notifying the 
Company immediately of any unauthorized use 
of services. 

2.3 Liabilitv of the Company 

2.3.1 The Company shall not be liable for any 
claim, loss, expense or damage for any 
interruption, delay, error, omission, or 
defect in any service, facility or 
transmission provided under this tariff, if 
caused by an act of God, fire, war, civil 
disturbance, act of government, or due to any 
other causes beyond the Company's control. 

2.3.2 The Company shall not be liable for, and 
shall be fully indemnified and held harmless 
by the Customer against any claim, loss, 
expense, or damage for defamation, libel, 
slander, invasion, infringement of copyright 
or patent, unauthorized use of any trademark, 
trade name or service mark, proprietary or 
creative right, or any other injury to any 
person, property or entity arising out of the 
material, data or information transmitted. 

2.3.3 No agent or employee of any other carrier or 
entity shall be deemed to be an agent or 
employee of the Company. 

Issued: September 26, 2000 Effective : 
BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President 
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2.3.4 The Company's liability, resulting in whole 
or in part from or arising in connection with 
the furnishing of service under this tariff, 
including but not limited to mistakes, 
omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or 
other defects shall not exceed an amount 
equal to the charges provided for under this 
tariff for the long distance call for the 
period during which the call was affected. 
No other liability in any event shall attach 
to the Company, except as ordered by the 
Commission. 

2.3.5 The Company shall not be liable for and shall 
be indemnified and saved harmless by any 
Customer or by any other entity from any and 
all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other 
action or any liability whatsoever, whether 
suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by 
any Customer or any other entity for any 
personal injury to, or death of, any person 
or persons, and for any loss, damage, 
defacement or destruction of the premises of 
any Customer or any other entity or any other 
property whether owned or controlled by the 
Customer or others. 

2.3.6 The Company shall not be liable for any 
indirect, special, incidental, or 
consequential damages under this tariff 
including, but not limited to, loss of 
revenue or profits, for any reason 
whatsoever, including the breakdown of 
facilities associated with the service, or 
for any mistakes, omissions, delays, errors, 
or defects in transmission occurring during 
the course of furnishing service. 

2.3.1 The remedies set forth herein are exclusive 
and in lieu of all other warranties and 
remedies, whether express or implied, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
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2.4 ResRonsibilities of the Customer 

2.4.1 

2.4.2 

2.4.3 

2.4.4 

2.4.5 

2.4.6 

The Customer is responsible for placing any 
necessary orders and complying with tariff 
regulations. The Customer is also 
responsible for the payment of charges for 
services provided under this tariff. 

The Customer is responsible for charges 
incurred for special construction and/or 
special facilities which the Customer 
requests and which are ordered by the Company 
on the Customer's behalf. 

If required for the provision of the 
Company's services, the Customer must provide 
any equipment space, supporting structure, 
conduit and electrical power without charge 
to the Company. 

The Customer is responsible for arranging 
access to its premises at times mutually 
agreeable to the Company and the Customer 
when required for Company personnel to 
install, repair, maintain, program, inspect 
or remove equipment associated with the 
provision of the Company's services. 

The Customer shall cause the temperature and 
relative humidity in the equipment space 
provided by Customer for the installation of 
the Company's equipment to be maintained 
within the range normally provided for the 
operation of microcomputers. 

The Customer shall ensure that the equipment 
and/or system is properly interfaced with the 
Company's facilities or services, that the 
signals emitted into the Company's network 
are of the proper mode, bandwidth, power and 
signal level for the intended use of the 
subscriber and in compliance with criteria 
set forth in this tariff, and that the 
signals do not damage equipment, injure 
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Section 2.4.6 Continued 
personnel, or degrade service to other 
Customers. If the Federal Communications 
Commission or some other appropriate 
certifying body certifies terminal equipment 
as being technically acceptable for direct 
electrical connection with the telephone 
network, the Company will permit such 
equipment to be connected with its channels 
without the use of protective interface 
devices. If the Customer fails to maintain 
the equipment and/or the system properly, 
with resulting imminent harm to Company 
equipment, personnel or the quality of 
service to other Customers, the Company may, 
upon written notice, require the use of 
protective equipment at the Customer's 
expense. If this fails to produce 
satisfactory quality and safety, the Company 
may, upon written notice, terminate the 
Customer's service. 

2.4.1 The Customer must pay the Company for 
replacement or repair of damage to the 
equipment or facilities of the Company caused 
by negligence or willful act of the Customer 
or others, by improper use of the services, 
or by use of equipment provided by Customer 
or others. 

2.4.8 The Customer must pay for the loss through 
theft of any Company equipment installed at 
Customer's premises. 

Customer's premises, the Customer shall be 
responsible for payment of any applicable 
installation charge. 

this tariff in a manner consistent with the 
terms of this tariff and the policies and 
regulations of all state, federal and local 
authorities having jurisdiction over the 
service. 

2.4.9 If the Company installs equipment at 

2.4.10 The Customer must use the services offered in 
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2.5 Cancellation or Interruption of Services 

2.5.1 Without incurring liability, upon five (5) 
working days' (defined as any day on which 
the company's business office is open and the 
U.S. Mail is delivered) written notice to the 
Customer, the Company may immediately 
discontinue services to a Customer or may 
withhold the provision of ordered or 
contracted services: 
2.5.1.A For nonpayment of any sum due the 

Company for more than thirty ( 3 0 )  
days after issuance of the b i l l  for 
the amount due, 

2.5.1.B For violation of any of the 
provisions of this tariff, 

2.5.1.C For violation of any law, rule, 
regulation, policy of any governing 
authority having jurisdiction over 
the Company's services, or 

2.5.1.D By reason of any order or decision 
of a court, public service 
commission or federal regulatory 
body or other governing authority 
prohibiting the Company from 
furnishing its services. 

2.5.2 Without incurring liability, the Company may 
interrupt the provision of services at any 
time in order to perform tests and 
inspections to assure compliance with tariff 
regulations and the proper installation and 
operation of Customer and the Company's 
equipment and facilities and may continue 
such interruption until any items of 
noncompliance or improper equipment operation 
so identified are rectified. 
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2.5.3 Service may be discontinued by the Company 
without notice to the Customer, by blocking 
traffic to certain counties, cities or NXX 
exchanges, or by blocking calls using certain 
Customer authorization codes, when the 
Company deems it necessary to take such 
action to prevent unlawful use of its 
service. The Company will restore service as 
soon as it can be provided without undue 
risk, and will, upon request by the Customer 
affected, assign a new authorization code to 
replace the one that has been deactivated. 

2.5.4 The Customer may terminate service upon 
verbal or written notice for the Company's 
standard month to month contract. Customer 
will be liable for all usage on any of the 
Company's service offerings until the 
Customer actually leaves the service. 
Customers will continue to have Company usage 
and be responsible for payment until the 
Customer or its agent notifies its local 
exchange carrier and changes its long 
distance carrier. 
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2.6 Credit Allowance - Interruption of Service 

2.6.1 Credit may be given for disputed calls, on a 
per call basis. 

2.6.2 Credit shall not be issued for unavailability 
of long distance services. 

2.6.3 The Customer shall be credited for an 
interruption of two hours or more at the rate 
of 1/720th of any monthly service charges for 
each hour or major fraction thereof that the 
interruption continues. 

Credit Formula: 

Credit = A x B 
720 

nA" - outage time in hours 
I, I, - monthly charge for affected activity 
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2.7 

2.8 

2.9 

Deposit 

The Company does not require deposits. 

Advance Payments 

The Company requires advance payments for recurring and 
non-recurring charges. This will be applied against 
the next month's charges, and if necessary, a new 
advance payment will be collected for the next month. 

Payment and Billinq 

2.9.1 Service is provided and billed on a billing 
cycle basis, beginning on the date that 
service becomes effective. Billing is 
payable upon receipt. 
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2.9.2 The customer is responsible for payment of 
all charges for services furnished to the 
Customer, as well as to all persons using the 
Customer's codes, exchange lines, facilities, 
or equipment, with or without the knowledge 
or consent of the Customer. The security of 
the Customer's Authorization Codes, 
subscribed exchange lines, and direct connect 
facilities is the responsibility of the 
Customer. All calls placed using direct 
connect facilities, subscribed exchange 
lines, or Authorization Codes will be billed 
to and must be paid by the Customer. 
Recurring charges and non-recurring charges 
are billed in advance. Charges based on 
actual usage during a month and any accrued 
interest will be billed monthly in arrears. 

2.10 C o l l e c t i o n  C o s t s  

In the event Company is required to initiate legal 
proceedings to collect any amounts due to Company for 
regulated services, or for the enforcement of any other 
provision of this tariff or applicable law, Customer 
shall, in addition to all amounts due, be liable to 
Company for all reasonable costs incurred by Company in 
such proceedings and enforcement actions, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, collection agency fees or 
payments, and court costs. In any such proceeding, the 
amount of collection costs, including attorneys' fees, 
due to the Company, will be determined by the court. 

2.11 TaxeS 

All federal, state and local taxes, assessments, 
surcharges, or fees, including sales taxes, use taxes, 
gross receipts taxes, and municipal utilities taxes, 
are billed as separate line items and are not included 
in the rates quoted herein. 
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2.12 Late Charae 

A late fee will be charged on any past due balances as 
set forth in Section 4.10 of this tariff. 

2.13 Returned Check Charae 

A fee, as set forth in Section 4.6 of this tariff, will 
be charged whenever a check or draft presented for 
payment for service is not accepted by the institution 
on which it is written. 

2.14 Location of Service 

The Company will provide service to Customers within 
the State of Florida. 

2.15 Sale of Telecommunications Services to Uncertified IXCs 
Prohibited 

Customers reselling or rebilling the Company's 
telecommunications services must have a Certificate of 
Public Convenience and Necessity as an interexchange 
carrier from the Commission. 

2.16 Reconnection Charae 

A reconnection fee per occurrence as set forth in 
Section 4.12 of this tariff, will be charged when 
service is reestablished for Customers which have been 
disconnected due to non-payment. Payment of the 
reconnection fee and any other outstanding amounts will 
be due in full prior to reconnection of service 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 

3.1 Computation of Charaes 

3.1.1 The total charge for each completed call may 
be a variable measured charge dependent on 
the duration, distance and time of day of the 
call. The total charge for each completed 
call may also be dependent only on the 
duration of the call, i.e. a statewide flat 
rate per minute charge. The variable 
measured charge is specified as a rate per 
minute which is applied to each minute. All 
calls are measured in increments as set forth 
in the Rates Section of this tariff. All 
calls are rounded up to the next whole 
increment. 

3.1.2 Usage charges for all mileage sensitive 
products are based on the airline distance 
between rate centers associated with the 
originating and terminating points of the 
call. The airline mileage between rate 
centers is determined by applying the formula 
below to the vertical and horizontal 
coordinates associated with the rate centers 
involved. The Company uses the rate centers 
that are produced by Bell Communications 
Research in the NPA-NXX V&H Coordinates Tape 
and Bell’s NECA Tariff No. 4. 

Formula : 

1 (Vl-V2)’ + (Hl-H2)’ 
\ I  10 
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3.1.3 Timing begins when the called party answers 
and two way communication is possible, as 
determined by standard industry methods 
generally in use for ascertaining answer, 
including hardware answer supervision in 
which the local telephone company sends a 
signal to the switch or the software 
utilizing audio tone detection. Timing for 
each call ends when either party hangs up. 

3.1.4 The Company will not bill for uncompleted 
calls. 

3.2 Customer Complaints and/or Billina Disputes 

Customer inquiries or complaints regarding service or 
accounting may be made in writing or by telephone to 
the Company at: 

67 Inverness Drive East 
Englewood, Colorado 80112 
(800) 531-4245 
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3.2 Continued 

Any objection to billed charges should be reported 
promptly to the Company or its billing agent. 
Adjustments to Customers' bills shall be made to the 
extent that records are available and/or circumstances 
exist which reasonably indicate that such charges are 
not in accordance with approved rates or that an 
adjustment may otherwise be appropriate. A Customer 
who is unable to resolve a billing dispute with the 
Company may contact the Commission by telephone at 1- 
800-342-3552 to intervene in the billing dispute. 

3.3 Level of Service 

A Customer can expect end to end network availability 
of not less than 99% at all times for all services. 

3.4 Billinu Entitv Conditions 

When billing functions on behalf of the Company or its 
intermediary are performed by local exchange telephone 
companies or others, the payment of charge conditions 
and regulations of such companies and any regulations 
imposed upon these companies by regulatory bodies 
having jurisdiction apply. The Company's name and 
toll-free telephone number will appear on the 
Customer's bill. 
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3.5 Service Offerinas 

3.5.1 

3 . 5 . 2  

3 . 5 . 3  

1+ Dialing 

This service permits Customers to originate 
calls via switched or dedicated access lines, 
and to terminate intrastate calls. The 
customer dials "1+" followed by "ten digits" 
or dials "101XXXX" followed by "1+ ten 
digits". 

Travel Cards 

The Customer utilizes an 11 digit "toll-free'' 
access number established by the Company to 
access a terminal. Upon receiving a voice 
prompt, the Customer uses push button dialing 
to enter an identification code assigned by 
the Company, and the ten digit number of the 
called party. 

800 Service (Toll-Free) 

This service is inbound calling only where an 
800, 888 or other toll-free prefix number 
rings into a Customer's premise routed to a 
specific telephone number or terminated over 
a dedicated facility. 
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3.5.4 Company Prepaid Calling Cards 

This service permits use of Prepaid Calling 
Cards for placing long distance calls. 
Customers may purchase Company Prepaid 
Calling Cards at a variety of retail outlets 
or through other distribution channels. 
Company Prepaid Calling Cards are available 
at a variety of face values. Company Prepaid 
Calling Card service is accessed using the 
Company toll-free number printed on the card. 
The caller is prompted by an automated voice 
response system to enter his/her 
Authorization Code, and then to enter the 
terminating telephone number. The Company's 
processor tracks the call duration on a real 
time basis to determine the number of Telecom 
Units consumed. The total consumed Telecom 
Units and applicable taxes for each call are 
deducted from the remaining Telecom Unit 
balance on the Customer's Company Prepaid 
Calling Card. 

All calls must be charged against Prepaid 
Calling Card that has a sufficient Telecom 
Unit balance. A Customer's call will be 
interrupted with an announcement when the 
balance is about to be depleted. 

When the balance is depleted, the Customer 
can either call the toll-free number on the 
back of the Company Prepaid Calling Card and 
"recharge" the balance on the card using a 
nationally recognized credit card, or the 
Customer can throw the card away and purchase 
a new one. Calls in progress will be 
terminated by the Company if the balance on 
the Company Prepaid Calling Card is 
insufficient to continue the call. 
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Section 3.5.4 Continued 

A card will expire on the date indicated on 
the card, or if no date is specified, 12 
months from the date of first usage, or the 
date of last recharge, whichever is later. 
The Company will not refund unused balances. 

A credit allowance for Company Prepaid 
Calling Card Service is applicable to calls 
that are interrupted due to poor 
transmission, one-way transmission, or 
involuntary disconnection of a call. To 
receive the proper credit, the Customer must 
notify the Company at the designated toll- 
free customer service number printed on the 
Company Prepaid Calling Card and furnish the 
called number, the trouble experienced (e.g. 
cut-off, noisy circuit, etc.), and the 
approximate time that the call was placed. 

When a call charged to a Company Prepaid 
Calling Card is interrupted due to cut-off, 
one-way transmission, or poor transmission 
conditions, the Customer will receive a 
credit equivalent of one Telecom Unit. 

Credit allowances for calls pursuant to the 
Company Prepaid Card Service do not apply for 
interruptions not reported promptly to the 
Company or interruptions that are due to the 
failure of power, equipment or systems not 
provided by the Company. 

Credit for failure of service shall be 
allowed only when such failure is caused by 
or occurs due to causes within the control of 
the Company. 

The Company will block all calls beginning 
with the NPA "900" and NXX "976" calls, 
therefore such calls can not be completed. 
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3.5.5 Directory Assistance. 

Access to long distance directory assistance 
is obtained by dialing 1 + (area code) + 555- 
1212. When more than one number is requested 
in a single call, a charge will be applicable 
for each number requested, whether or not the 
number is listed or published. 

3.5.6 Emergency Call Handling Procedures 

Emergency "911" calls are not routed to 
company, but are completed through the local 
network at no charge. 

3.5.1 Promotional Offerings 

The Company may offer approved special 
promotions of new or existing services or 
products for limited time periods as approved 
by the Commission. These promotions will 
include specific tariffed starting and ending 
dates. All such promotions will be offered 
on a completely non-discriminatory basis. 
All such tariffed promotions must be approved 
by the Commission and must state exactly what 
charges are being reduced or waived, who is 
eligible, and what Customers have to do to be 
eligible. 

3.5.8 Discounts 

Discounts may apply based upon volume, 
affinity group plans, or term plan 
commitments. 
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SECTION 4 - RATES 

4.1 1+ & 101XxXX Dialinq 

Residential Switched: $0.1359 per minute 

Business Switched: $0.1178 per minute 

Business Dedicated: $0.0685 per minute 

A $4.95 per month per number service charge applies. 

Billed in one minute increments 

4.2 Travel Cards 

$0.35 per minute 

A $.25 per call service charge applies. 
Billed in one minute increments 

4.3 800 Service (Toll Free) 

Residential Switched: $0.1404 per minute 

Business Switched: $0.1223 per minute 

Business Dedicated: $0.0745 per minute 

A $4.95 per month per number service charge applies. 

Billed in one minute increments 

4.4 Prepaid Callinu Cards 

$ . 2 5  Per Telecom Unit 

A $ . 9 9  per call service charge applies 
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Monday - Friday Sat. Sun. 

Daytime Rate Period 

Evening 

Period 
XIrjI Evening Rate Period 

Night/Weekend Rate Period 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 
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4.8 Rates Applicable for Hearina/Speech Impaired Persons 

For intrastate toll messages which are communicated 
using a telecommunications device for the deaf (TDD) by 
properly certified business establishments or 
individuals equipped with TDDs for communications with 
hearing or speech impaired persons, the rates shall be 
evening rates for daytime calls and night rates for 
evening and night calls. 
Intrastate toll calls received from the relay service, 
each local exchange and interexchange 
telecommunications company billing relay call will be 
discounted by 50 percent of the applicable rate for a 
voice nonrelay call except that where either the 
calling or called party indicates that either party is 
both hearing and visually impaired, the call will be 
discounted 60 percent off the applicable rate for voice 
nonrelay calls. 

Florida Public Service Commission Rules and Regulations 
require the Company to provide the first 50 directory 
assistance calls initiated per billing cycle by 
handicapped persons free of charge. 

4.9 Emplovee Concessions 

The Company does not offer employee concessions. 

4.10 Late Charae 

1.5% monthly or the amount otherwise authorized by law, 
whichever is lower. 

4.11 Pawhone Dial Around Surcharae 

A dial around surcharge of $.35 per call will be added 
to any completed INTRAstate toll access code and 
subscriber 8 0 0 / 8 8 8  type calls placed from a public or 
semi-public payphone. 

4.12 Reconnection Charae 

$25.00 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
T-NETIX, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and 
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1999. These consolidated 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for OUT opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,1999 and 1998, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended 
December 31, 1999, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

KPMG LLP 

Denver, Colorado 
March 21. 2000 
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T-NEm, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

D ~ c ~ m b e r  31, 
1999 1998 

(mounts in thousands) 
) .  

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents ................................................. 
Accounts receivable, net (note 2) ............................... .;. ......... 
Prepaid expenses .......................................................... 
Inventories .............................................................. 

Total c m n t  assets ................................ ;. ............. 
Goodwi1l.net ............................................................... 
Deferred tax asset ......................................................... 

Total assets.. ................................. :. ................... 

Property and equipment, net (note 2) ......................................... 

Intangible and other assets, net (note 2) ....................................... 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable ....................................................... 
Accrued liabilities (note 2) ............................................... 
Debt (note 5) .......................................................... 

Total current liabilities ............................................ 
Long term debt (note 5) ................................................ 

Total liabllttres ................................................... . . .  
Stockholders' equity (note 6): 

Preferred stock, $.01 stated value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued 
qommon stock, $.01 stated value, 70,000,000 shares authorized; 12,699,400 and 

12,225,634 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 1999 and 1998, 
respectively .......................................................... 

Additional paid-in capital ................................................ 
Accumulated deficit. .................................................... 

Total stockholders' equity .......................................... 
Commitments and contingencies (note 9) 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ...................................... 

See accompanying not- to consolidated financial statements. 

$ 118 
16,868 
1,038 

710 
18,734 
33,858 

6,401 
2,297 
9,252 

$ 70,542 

$ 11,914 
7.606 
1,366 

26,886 
21,555 
48,441 

127 
35,791 

(13,817) 
22,101 

$ 70,542 

$ 678 
16,489 

1,023 
269 

18,459 
31,498 

5,824 
962 

8,736 
$65,479 - - 

$ 4,688 
5,677 

21,353 
31,718 
4,157 

35,875 

122 
33,052 

29,604 

$65,479 

(3,570) 

- 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended D m m k  31, 

(amountr in thousands, except 
1998 1p97 -- 1999 

. .  per share amounb) 

Revenue:. 
Telecommunications services. ................................... $ 39,274 $43,089 $39,616 
Direct call provisioning.. ....................................... 27,517 22,736 . 19,051 
Equipment sales and other.. .................................... 6444 2,416 3,638 

Total revenue.. ................................... .:. ... 73,235 68,241 . 62,305 
Expenses: 

Operating costs and expenses: 
Telecommunications services. ................................. 17,674 17,014 15,262 
Direct call provisioning.. ..; ................................... 25,032 20,048 16,462 

Total operating costs and expenses.. ....................... 46,321 37,910 .33,022 
Selling, general and administrative.. ............................. 13,794 13,401 11,816 
Research and development 5,078 3,936 . 3,554 

Depreciation and amortization. .................................. 11,620 10,174 9,546 
Total expenses.. ........................................ 81,445 65,421 57.938 
Operating income (loss) ................................. (8,210) 2,820 4,367 

Cost of equipment sold and other.. ............................ 3,615 848 1298 - A  

..................................... 
Impairment of telecommunications.assets ......................... 4,632 - .  . - 

-- 
-- 

Merger transaction expenses ...................................... (1,017) - - 
Interest and other income (expense), net ........................... (2,137) (2,354) (1,583) 

Income tax benefit (expense) (note 8) ............................. 1,117 (196) (1,039) 

Basic earnings(1oss) per common share.. ........................... $ 0.02 $ 0.15 

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share .......................... $ (0.82) $ 0.02 $ 0.13 

Weighted average common shares-basic .......................... ~ 12,511 12,172 11 909 

Weighted average common shares -diluted.. ....................... 12,511 12,930 12,988 

See accompanying notes to consolidated 6nancial statements. 

Earnings (loss) bcfore income taxes.. (11,364) 466 2,784 ...................... 

Net earnings (loss) ............................................... $(10,247) $ 270 $ 1,745 -- 
-- -- 
-- 
- A  -- 
-- . .  
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T-NETJX, INC AND SUBSIDIARlFS 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Balances at January 1,1997 ................... 
Common stock issued upon exercise of 

Common stock issued in business acquisition. ..... 
stock options.. ............................. 

Common stock issued for cash,. ..... !. ......... 
Dividends paid to'prefemd stockholders ......... 
Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8) 
Net earnings.. ............................... 
Balances at December 31,1997.. ............... 
Common-stock issued upon exercise of 

stock options.. ............................. 
Conversion of preferred stock.. ................. 
Purchase of treasury stock ..................... 
Stock compensation.. ......................... 
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders ......... 
Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8) 
Adjustinents to conform year ends of combined 

companies ................................. 
Net earnings.. .......................... :.. .. 
Balances at December 31,1998.. ............... 
Common stock issued upon exercise of 

stock options i .............................. 
Common stock issued for intangible asset 

'(note 3) ................................... 
Net loss.. ................................... 
Balances at December 31,1999.. ............... 

Additional Total 
Paid-in Accumulated Stockholdmi 

Sham Amount Capital DeRcit Eqvity -- 
(amounts in thoomnds) 

11,505 $ 115 $ 30,130 $ (3,279) $ 26,966 

206 155 2 204 - 
94 
600 202 2 598 - 

- (36) ', (36) 
402 - - 402 - 

- - - 1,745 1,745 

11,870 119 31,428. (1,570) 29,977 

821 
593 

75 . 75 
(9) (9) 

198 

- . 94 - 8 

- - 

- -  

230 2 819. - 
592 . - 149 1 

(32) - (98) (26) (124) - - .  - - - .  - - 198 - 

38 (2,235) (2,197) - 270 270 

12,226 122 33,052 (3,570) . 29,604 

- 9 - - -- 

98 1 256 - 257 

375 4 2,483 - 2,481 
(10,247) (10,247) - - - - -  

=-  12,699 $127 $ 35,791 $(13,817) $ 22,101 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
, .  
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T.NETJX, INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ' 

Year Ended Lkccmbar 31. 
1999 iwn ,a.n .... .... .... 

(mounts in thaulunds) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net earnings (loss) ............................................ 
Adjustments to reconcile net eainings to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization ................................. 
Impairment loss and investment write-off ........................ 
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) .......................... 
Stock compensation expense ..................................... 
Changes . in operating assets and liabilities.. 

Change in accounts .kceiv&le, net ............................ 
Change in prepaid expenses., ........ : ...................... 
Change in inventory .......................................... 
Change in intangibles and other assets ......................... 
Change in accounts payable ................................. 
Change in accrued liabilities ................................ 

Loss (gain) on sale of.pmperty and equipment ................... 

. .  Cash provided by opcrating activities ....................... 
Capital expenditures .......................................... 
Acquisition of business or business assets ............. .......... 
Proceeds from disposal or property and equipment ................ 

Cash used in investing activities: 

Other investing activities ..................................... 
Cash used in.investing activities ........................... 

Cash Bows from financing activities: 
Net proceeds (payments) under line of credit ................... 
Proceeds from debt ........................................... 
Common stock issued for cash under option plans ................ 
Common stock issued for cash ................................ 
Treasury stack purchased .................................... i . 
Dividends on preferred stock .................................... 
Redemption on preferred stock .................................. I 

Payments of debt .. ......................................... . .  

Cash provided by (used in ) financing activities ............... 
Net increase (decreasc)'in cash and cash cquivalenta ............... 
Adjustment to conform year ends of combined companies ... : ....... 
Cash and cash equivalents at heginniig of year .................... 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ......................... 

S(10.247) $ 270 

11. 620 10. 174 
4. 632' 600 

(1. 117) 15 
(206) (83) - 75 

(263) 1. 680 
(48) (678) 
(441) (164) 

6. 972 (549) 
(593) (227) 

1. 907 (670) 
12. 216 10.443 

(14. 560) (6. 190) 
(1. 377) (2. 679) 
473 121 
(980) (2. 460) 

(16. 444) (11. 208) 

11. 489 (2. 318) 
(8. 078) (3.064) - 5. 731 
257 821 - - 

(124) 
(9) 

- (7) 

- 
- 

3. 668 I. 030 
(560) 265 

48 
678 365 

$ 118 $ 678 

- 

$ 7 4 5  1. 

9. 546 

570' 
6 

. 

. 

13 
(1. 7-08] 

(10,431) 

6. 765 
(3. 396) 
3. 722 
206 
600 - 
(36) - - 

7, 861 
11 . 
354 

$ 3 6 5  
. . . .  Cash paid for interest ............................................. $ 2. 568 $ 1. 773 $ 1. 502 

Cash paid for income taxes ....................................... $ 217 $ 622 $ 95 
.... . . . .  . .  

.. . .  

See accompanying notes'to consolidated financial statements: 
. .  
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. .  .. . T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
,.. , . 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED Fh4NcLAL STATEMENTS 
December 31,1999 and 1998 

(1) Summary of .Significant Accounting Policies 
General , .  

T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (“T-NETIX” or the “Company”) was incorporated in Colorado in 
1986. The Company has three reportable segments the Corkctions Division, the Internet S,ervjces . .  Division 
and the SpeakEZ Division (“SpeakEZ”). 

The Corrections Division primarily manages its specialized ‘telecommunications hardware and sOft\irare 
systems for, long distance ind local. exchange carriers on a contractual basis.’ The long distance &d local 
exchange carriers in turn pay a fee per call to the Company for each billable call made from a phonesubject to 
a contract with the Company. The Company also receives revenue from billing collect calls made from 
correctional facilities in which the Company’s specialized telecokunications hardware and software systems 
are located. The Internet Services Division provides interLATA Internet services to Internet subscribers and 
buys and resells Internet bandwidth. SpeakEZ engages in the research and development and sales and 
marketing of speaker verification technology. 

of the earliest period presented. Information concerning common stock’and per share data has hten restated 

‘ The consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the’ye&s ended December 31, 1998 A d  
1997 have been recast to reflect the results of operations and cash flows for T-NETIX for the years ended 
July 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, combined with Gateway for the yem. ended December 31, ‘1998’ind 
1997. 

A’ a m u l t  of T-NETIX and Gateway h a k g  d i f fqnt  fiscal year ends prior to’ 1999, the results of 
operations of T-NETIX for the five month period ended December 31, 1998; have been excluded from the 

on an equivalent share basis. r 

.. ... l._. 

1 ,  

. .. , , . .  
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T-NET& INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

. (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Polides (continued) . . , 

.The Company, has taken steps to obtain the additional financing, on, or before the deadline of April 14, 
2000, by entering into term sheets to issue convertible preferred securities to a non-related party and 
subordinated debt instruments to one of the Company's directors. Management believes that they will 
complete the above financing arrangements in the time frame imposed by the lenders. Should the Company be 
unable to complete the financing arrangements or an alternative financing arrangement by the deadline 
currently imposed by the lenders, the Company would again be in breach of the loan agreement covenants and 
the lenders could commence immediate collection activity. 

In addition, the Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations and obtain additional 
financing to ensure that the Company is able to carry out its fiscal 2000 business plan. There can be no 
assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from operations or that additional 
financing will be available, or if available, will be obtained on acceptable terms. 

' 

. .  

. .  . . .  

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the acco.mts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.in consolidation. 

. .  . .  

Accounting Estimates 
"' The preparation. of financial statements in' conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

. .  . .  . .  

Risks and Unceitainties 
I 

A majority of the Company's revenue is generated fmm' serviffis provided to signscant telecommunica- 
tions customers. The loss of a major customer could affect operating results adversely. 

Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as certificates of deposit and money market 
. . .. funds, with original maturities of 90 days or less. 

~ .. 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments . , 

The reported amounts of the Company's financial ins&ments including cash and cash equivalents, 
receivables, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturities. The 
reported amounts of debt approximate fair value due to market interest rates that these debts bear. . .  

. .  

Concentratio? of Credit Risk, . .  

Financial instruments which potentially expase the Company to concentrations. of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash and cash'.equivalents a id  accounts receivable; The Company's revenue is primarily 
concentrated in the United States in the telecommunications industry. The Company had trade accounts 
receivable from 5 customers that comprised 28% and 31% of total trade accounts receivable at December 31, 
1999 and 1998, respectively. The Company does not require collateral on accounts receivable balances and 
provides allowances for potential credit losses. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been established based 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
. . .  , , .  '.'.: NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (continued) 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Polides (continued) 

on historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable at the end of the 
accounting period. 

I. 

InventorieJ ' 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is dete&ned. using the, first-in, first-out 
method. Provisions, when required, are made to reduce excess and obsolete inventories to their estimated net 
realizable values. . . .  . .  .. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost, including costs necessary to place such property and equipment 
in service. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance arc charged to 
operations as incurred. 

Construction in progress represents the cost of material purchases and construction costs, including 
interest capitalized during construction, for telecommunications hardware systems in various stages of 
completion. During the years ended December 31,1999, 1998 and 1997, interest capitalized was insignificant. 

Depreciation is computed on a stm'ght-line basis using estimated useful lives of 3 to 7 years for 
telecommunications equipment and 5 to 10 years for office equipment. No depreciation is recorded on 
construction in progress until the asset is placed in service. 

. .  
Intangible and Other Assets 

Other assets include intellectual property assets, capitalized computer software, patent defense and 
application costs, deposits and long-term prepayments and other intangible assets. Patents and intangible 
assets are stated at cost. Amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over 17 years for patent costs'and 
periods ranging from 3 to 7 years for other intangibles. Amortization charged to expense was $1,500,000, 
$936,000, and $796,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999. 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

. .  
GoomVill 

Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost over the net tangible and identifiable assets of the acquired 
'businesses, is stated at cost and is amortized, principally on a'straight-lie basis, over the estimated future 
periods to be benefited 5 to 10 years. On an annual basis, the Company reviews the recoverability of goodwill 
based primarily on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows from the, acquired business. Accumulated 
amortization amounted to $1,103,000 and $364,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998; respectively. 

.. . . 
Impairment of Long-.bved Assets . .  . 

The Company reviews its property and equipment and unamortized intan~ble  assets whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Company estimates 
the future cash flows expected to result from operations and if the sum of the expected undiscounted future 
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the long-lived asset, the Company recognizes an impairment loss 
by reducing the unamortized cost of. the long-lived asset to its estimated fair d u e .  

During the year ended December 31,. 1999, the Company recorded an impairment charge OF telecommu- 
nications assets of $4,632,000. Impaired telecommunications assets consisted of software development costs, 
construction in progress. and inmate calling platform assets. Two events occurred in 1999 indicated that the 
carrying value of certain equipment and intangible assets may not be recoverable. 
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1 T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
N O ~ S  TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL , .  STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

. (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

;In September, 1999, the Company completed an evaluation of the future viability of its new inmate 
calling platform (“DL Platform”) which it had been developing over the past two years. The merger with 
Gateway allowed the Company to consider an alternative to-the DL Platform. The Company determined that 
the’Gateway ComBridge Platform (“ComBridge”), would be the platform to install for both’new customers 
and upgrades of.existing customers. However, over the last year the Company bad been awarded certain 
contracts where the DL Platform was to be deployed. Since the Company believes that it would .not be cost 
effective to maintain and support two separate systems, ,the Company proceeded to renegotiate all existing 
contracts to install ComBridge instead of the DL Platform. During the quarter ended September 30, 1999, the 
C o m p y  successfully completed these negotiations. Due to the abandonment of the DL Platform, the 
Company no longer has any anticipated cash flow to support the carrying value of assets related to the 
DL Platform. Capitalizedtosts relating to the DL Platform included software development costs, components 
(consisting of primarily telephony cards) and other supporting computer peripheral equipment. The estimated 
impairment, being the excess of the carrying amounts over the respective estimated fair value of these assets, 
is approximately $3,669,000 for the year ended December 31, 1999. As a result, software development costs at 
December 31, 1999 were impaired by $2,093,000 and construction in progress relating to these products was 

In addition, the Company deployed a version of its old inmate calliing platform that resides in its 
customer’s network locations. The Company has recently experienced a reduction in call volumes and 
revenues for this platform. The customer has indicated to the Company that it does not intend to use the 
platform as a source’of future services. Additionally, since the platform was based on the predecessor to the 
DL Platform, there is not an upgrade path available for the new platform. Any new feature or service offering 
would be evaluated based on the new ComBridge Platform. The reduction in call volumes caused the 
estimated fair value of these assets to be less than the existing book value. The Company estimated the fair 
value of these assets based on the discounted cash flows from each service location. After consideration of 
minimal salvage value of these assets due to their specific use, the Company recorded an impairment charge of 
approximately’$963,000. This charge was applicable to the Corrections Division. 

impaired by $1,576,000. AI1 of these charges are applicable to the Corrections Division. . .  

. .  

. .  Revenue Recognition 

Revenue and’ expenses from telecommunications services and’direct call provisioning are recognized at 
the time the telephone call is Completed. Provision is made for uncollectible accounts in the period direct call 
provisioning revenue is recorded. Revenue from equipment sales is recognized when the equipment is shipped 
to customers. Internet services are recognized as the services are provided. The Company records deferred 
revenue for advance billings to customers, or prepayments by customen prior to the completion of installation 
or prior to the provision of contractual bandwidth usage. 

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of computer softwa?c in accordance with the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. (“AICPA”). Statement of Position 97-2, “Software .Rev.enue 
Recognition” (“SOP 97-27. as amended by Statement of Position 98-4, “Deferral of the Effective Date of a 

SOP 97-2 and SOP 98-4 generally require revenue earned on software arrangements involving multiple 
elements (Le. software products, upgradestenhancements, post contract “customers support, installation, 
training, etc.) to be allocated to each element based on the relative fair value of the elements. The fair value 
of an element must be recognized.upon delivety of the products. The ivenue allocated to.post contract 
customer support generally is recognized ratably over the term of the support and the revenue allocated to 
service elements (such as training and installation) generally is recognized as the services are performed. If a 
vendor does not have evidence of the fair value of all elements in a multiple-element arrangement, all’revenuc 
from the arrangement is deferred until such evidence exists or until all elements are delivered. 

Provision of SOP 97-2” (“SOP 98<).. . .  
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

In December 1998, the AICPA issued Statement of Position 98-9, “Modfication Of 97-2, Software 
Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions”. (“SOP 98-9”). SOP 98-9 requires the use of 
the “residual method” for recognition of revenue when vendor-specific objective evidence exists for 
undelivered elements but does not exist’for delivered elements of a software arrangement. The Cbmpany’will 
be required to comply with the provisions of SOP 98-9 for transactions entered into beginning January 1,2000. 
The Company believes the adoption of SOP 98-9 will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial 
statements, results of operations or financial condition. 

, .  

’ Research and Development 

,.. Costs associated with the research and development of new technology or significantly altering existhg 
technology are charged to operations as. incurred. Software development costs have been accounted for in 
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer 
Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed. Under the standard, capitalization of software 
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility, subject to net. realizable value 
considerations. Capitalized software costs are amortized over the economic useful life of the software product, 
which is generally estimated to he three years. 

The American Institute of Certified. .Public Accountants (“AICPA”) Statement of Position 98-1, 
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Development or Obtained for Internal Use (“SOP 98-1”) 
provides guidance for the accounting for computer software developed or.obtained for internal use including 
the requirement to capitalize specified costs. There were no such costs capitalized pursuant to SOP 98-1 at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

. ,  

401 ( k )  Plan, 

Tbe Company established a 401 (k) plan for all of its full time employees effective January 1, 1994. In 
Juni 1998, the Company implemented a matching program. The program calls for the Company to match 
25% of an employee’s contribution up to 6% of the individual employee’s total salary. Matching contributions 
and plan expenses were $1 11,000 for the year ended December 31, 1999 and were not significant for the year 
ended December 31, 1998. 

. . .  Income Taxes 

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Accordingly, 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax 
bases and operating loss and tax ‘credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in income tax 
rates is recognized in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date, 

. .  . .  
Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share 

Earnings (loss) per common share are presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, EarningsPerShare (SFAS 128). Basic earnings per share excludes 
dilution for common stock equivalents and is computed by dividing income or loss available to common 
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities ‘or other contracts to issue 
common stock were exercised or’converted into common stock. For the year ended December 31, 1999, 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

- (1) Summaq of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

375,000 common stock equivalents were not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation, as their 
effect would be anti-ditutive. For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 diluted common and common 
equivalent shares outstanding includes 758,000 and 1,080,000, respectively of common share equivalents, 
consisting of stock options, determined under the treasury stock method. 

Stock Compensation 

The Company accounts for employee stock options under the provisions APB Opinion No. 25, 
%counting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and has adopted the “disclosure only” alternative 
described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, ‘%counting for the Stock-Based 
Compemution” (“SFAS 123”), which requires pro forma disclosure of compensation expense using a fair 
value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans. 

Comprehemive Income 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income, ” (SFAS 130) 
establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components in a full set of 
general-purpose financial statements. The objective of SFAS 130 is to report a measure of all changes in 
equity of an enterprise that result from transactions and other economic events of the period other than 
transactions with stockholders (“comprehensive income”). Comprehensive income is the total of the net 
income (loss) and all other non-owner changes in equity. For the year ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 
1997, the Company’s comprehensive earnings (loss) was equal to net earnings (loss). 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement 

In  June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This 
statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain 
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives), and for hedging 
activities. The statement requircs companies to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities, with the 
instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in fair value, gains or losses, depends on the 
intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation. In June, 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued SFAS 137. “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Deferral of the 
Effective Date of FASB No. 133 -An amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” SFAS 137 defers the 
effective date of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years beginning after June 15.2000. The Company 
does not expect the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of 
operations. 

Reclass@cafion 

Certain amounts in the 1998 and 1997 linancial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 1999 
presentation. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLJDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(2) Balance Sheet Components 

Accounts receivable consist of the following: 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

(amount8 in thoosaads) 

Accounts receivable, net: 
Trade accounts receivable.. .................................... $ 11,797 $ 10,963 
Direct call provisioning receivable ............................... 7,268 6,190 
Customer reimbunable receivable ............................... 1,161 785 
Other receivables ............................................. 23 1 547 

20,457 18,485 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ......................... (3,589) (1,996) 

$ 16,868 $ 16,489 

Bad debt expense was $4,981,000, $4,930,000, and $3,785,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 
1998 and 1997, respectively. 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

December 31. 
1999 1998 

(mounts  in thousands) 

Property and equipment, net: 
Telecommunications equipment .................................. $ 55,487 $ 52,075 
Construction in progress ........................................ 7,341 5,011 

. Office equipment .............................................. 9,169 7,326 
71,997 64,412 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization.. ............... (38,139) (32,914) 
$ 33,858 $ 31,498 

Intangible and other assets consist ofthe following 

Intangible and other assets, net: 
Patent license rights.. ........................................... 
Purchased technology assets ...................................... 
Capitalized software development casts. ............................ 
Acquired software technologies ................................... 
Patent defense and application costs ............................... 
Deposits and long-term prepayments. .............................. 
Other.. ....................................................... 

Less: Accumulated amortization ............................. .. 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

(mounts in thousands) 
- -  

$ 3,325 $ 3,325 
2,487 - 

65 1 1,821 
1,783 1,726 
2,583 2,525 
1,183 505 
1 649 1,793 

13,661 11,695 

$ 9,252 $ 8,736 

A- 

(4,409) (2,959) 

= =  

F-12 



T-NETE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

- (2) Balance Sheet Components - (continued) 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following 

... 

Dceenber 31. 

(amoanb In thousands) 
1999 - 1998 

Accrued liabilities: 
......................... Deferred revenue and customer advances $. 2.1 14 $ 1,228 

Other 4,317 3,157 
$ 5,677 

Compensation related ......................................... 1,175 1,292 
....................................................... 

. .  
- - $ 7,606 

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions 

Gateway ,. 

On June 14,1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway, by exchanging 3,672,234 shares.of its 
common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Each share of Gateway was exchanged for 
5.0375 shares of T-NETIX common stock Outstanding Gateway stock options were also converted at the 
same exchange factor into options to purchase approximately 379,000 shares of T-NETIX common stock 

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375,341 shares of common stock 
to certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for terminating a royalty agreement. The royalty agreement 
related to automated call processing technology and intellectual property rights that were assigned to Gateway 
by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The termination of the royalty owners' interests 
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been recorded at fair.value, or $2,487,000. The 
fair value is based on the value of T-NETIX common stock at February 10, 1999 (date of the Merger 
Agreement), or $6.625, times the number of shares issued in exchange for termination of the royalty owners' 
interests. The intangible asset has been recorded in patent license rights and has an estimated useful l i e  of 
10 years, the remaining term of the underlying patent. 

Selected financial data of T-NETIX and Gateway, prior to the merger were as follows: ' ' 

lhm Months Ended Y e m  Ended 
Msrch 31, Dewmber 31, 

(amounta in thonsmds) 

... 

1999 1998 1997 

Revenue: 
T-NETIX ... , ... % .  ......................... $ 8,669 $ 38,008 $ 36,292 
Gateway. ................................... 9,115 -30,233 26,013 

Combined ....... .;. . .:. .................. $ 17,784 $ 68,241 $ 62,305 

Gateway.. ................... : .............. 245 (124) 1,154 ~' 

. 
Net earnings (loss): 

T-NETIX ............. ,. ................... $ (1,077) $ ' 394 $ 591 

$ 270 $ 1,745 ...................... ........ 
.. 

Combined :. $ (832) 

Transactions between T-NETIX and Gateway prior to the merger consisted of revenue from a cross- 
licensing agreement. All such amounts have been eliminated in the restated consolidated financial statements. 
There were no material adjustments required to conform the accounting policies of the two companies. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
.. . 
” ‘:,.‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(3) Mergen and Acqnisitions - (continued) 

Certain reclassifications were made to the Gateway financial statements to conform to T-NETIX’s 
presentations. 

In connection with the merger, the Company incurred merger transaction expenses of $l,O17,OOO for the 
year ended December 31, 1999. Merger transaction expenses consisted primarily of fees for investment 
bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related charges. 

. .. 

Evans and Ricker Acquisition , .  

Effective October 28, 1999, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the &sets of 
Evans and Ricker (“EBrR”), of Portland, Oregon. E&R specialize in software used to control and manage 
information for correctional facilities. E&R‘s product, Lock and Track Corrections Information System 
(“Lock & Track””) is a comprehensive relational database designed to handle the operational control and 
reporting needs of municipal, state, federal, and/or private correctional facilities. The purchase price was 
approximately $1.4 ‘million including acquisition costs. The acquisition has been accounted for using the 
purchase method of accounting. The results of operations associated with the assets acquired are included in 
the Company’s financial statements beginning November 1, 1999. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
have been recorded at their fair values. The assets acquired were cash, accounts receivable and intangibles. 
The estimated excess, of cost over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired of approximately 
$1.3 million was allocated principally to goodwill, which will be amortized on a straight line basis over 7 years. 
The remaining net assets acquired were primarily current assets .(cash and accounts receivable) net of current 
liabilities (accounts payable. and accrued liabilities). The acquisition was funded by borrowings under, the 
Company’s line of credit. Pro forma information giving effect to this acquisition has been omitted as the pro 
forma results do not vary materially from the Company’s recorded results, as E&R’s operations were not 
significant in 1998 or 1997. . .  

(4) SpeakEZ Operations 

‘In December 1998, the Company began an evaluation of the SpeakEZ Division and determined that the 
best course of action was to combine its research and development operations previously located in 
New Jersey with its corporate operations in Englewood, Colorado. This change coincided yith the resignation 
of the Company’s former chief executive officer on December 9, 1998. This individual spent a majority of his 
time in the SpeakEZ Division. For the five months ended December 31, 1998, the Company charged the cost 
of the severance agreement or approximately $240,000 to SpeakEZ selling, general and administrative 
expense. . .  . 

The Company completed the reorganization of SpeakEZ operations in February 1999. The reorganiza- 
tion also included a change in the marketing strategy from a direct customer sales strategy to a technology 
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets a specifically developed software product to a 
specific, end user customer, The strategy is then to h d  other speci6c customers who have’similar operating 
systems and market this product to them. In contrast, a technology licensing strategy focuses on a larger scale 
customer who can ,integrate the SpeakEZ software product into its existing product lime. This larger customer, 
such as a computer manufacturer, is then responsible for the product integration and ultimate delivery to the 
end user customer. 

The change inmarketing approach noted above required the Company to evaluate future marketability of 
all products in the SpeakEZ Division. As a result of this evaluation, management, determined that the 
capitalized cost for SpeakEZ products, some of which would no longer be marketed, exceeded their estimated 
realizable value. For the five months ended December 31; 1998, the Company incumd’a charge of $490,000 
for a reduction in the carrying value of such’ capitalized costs to their estimated net realizable value. . 
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T-NETIX, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(4) SpeskEZ Operations (continued) 
The Company also recognized a loss in the SpeakEZ Division on a note receivable made to a venture 

partner for $300,000. In December 1998, the venture partner notified the Company that its plans to raise 
capital prior to January 1999 were not progressing according to plan and as a result it would not be able to 
meet its obligations as they became due. 

(5) Debt 

Debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is summarized BS follows: 
Dmmber 31, 

1999 1998 
(amounts in thousands) 

Debt: 
Bank lines of credit ........................................... 
Notes payable to stockholders .................................. 
Notes payable to banks ........................................ 
Other. ...................................................... 

Advances on direct calk processing.. ............................. 

Less current portion.. ....................................... 
Non current portion.. ....................................... 

$ 28,461 - 
- 
- 

’ 460 
28,921 
7,366 

$ 21,555 

$ 16,972 
2,531 
4,800 
625 
582 

25,510 
21,353 

$ 4,157 

In September 1999, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Credit 
Facility”) with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility provides for maximum credit of $40,000,000 subject 
to limitations based on financial covenant calculations. The Credit Facility is comprised of a one year LIBOR 
component of $15,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% at December 31, 1999; a three month 
LIBOR component of $10,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% at December 31, 1999; and 
$3,461,000 at the Bank‘s prime rate, 8.5% at December 31, 1999. As of December 31, 1999, the interest rate 
on borrowings under the line of credit ranged from 8.50% to 8.87%. The Company also pays a fee of 0.30% per 
annum on the unused portion of the line of credit. 

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Under the terms of 
the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios and other financial covenants. 
These ratios include a debt to a four quarter rolling earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and 
amortization (EBITDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (interest and debt payments) to EBITDA, and 
minimum quarterly EBITDA. The Agreement also prohibits the Company from incumng additional 
indebtedness. 

At December 31,1999 the Company was in violation of certain covenants and the Company has received 
a waiver from its lenders relating to various covenant violations. In connection with the waiver, the lenders 
agreed to revise the existing covenant requirements if the Company can raise $7 million of additional financing 
on or before April 14,2000. The funds raised are required to be used to reduce the outstanding balance on the 
Cndit  Facility. The terms of the bank dictate that $7 million of the Credit Facility is due April 14,2000 with 
the remaining balance of the facility due April 30, 2001. The amount of credit under the Credit facility 
available to the Company is dependent upon our financial performance and may be less than $40 million. 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(6) Stockholders’ Equity 
Stock Option Plans 

The Company has reserved 3,850,000 shares of common stock for employees and nonzmployee directors 
under various stock option plans (collectively the “Plans”): the 1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan (“the 1991 
IS0 Plan”); the 1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (“the 1991 NSO Plan”); and the 1993 Incentive 
Stock Option Plan (“the 1993 IS0 Plan”). The Plans provide for issuing both incentive stock options, and 
non-qualified stock options, which must be granted at not less than 100% of the fair market value of the stock 
on the date of grant. All options to date have been granted at the fair market value of the stock as determined 
by the Board ofDircctors. Options issued prior to 1994 had vesting terms of one to three years from the date of 
grant. Substantially all of the Incentive Stock Options issued after 1993 vest over four years from the date of 
grant. The options expire ten years from the date of grant. 

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity, and related information through December 31, 1999 
is as follows: 

Options Outstanding 
Weiehted 
A G g e  

for Cnnt Shares __ Prim 

Balance at January 1, 1997.. ........................ 476,163 2,513,957 $ 4.55 

Sham Available Number of Exercise 

Granted ........................................ (1 11,500) 111.500 $ 8.61 
Ex e r c i s e d ....................................... - (281,200) $ 2.67 
Canceled ....................................... 96,875 (96,875) $ 6.83 

Balance at December 31, 1997.. ..................... 461,538 2,247,382 $ 4.88 
Granted ........................................ (246,619) 246,619 $ 5.24 
Exercised. ...................................... - (77,477) $ 2.86 
Canceled ....................................... 166,000 (166,000) $ 6.45 

Balance at December 31, 1998.. ..................... 380,919 2,250,524 $ 4.88 
.. Granted.. ...................................... (223.800) 223,800 $ 5.34 

Exercised. ...................................... - (98,425) $ 2.61 
Canceled ..................... .’:. ............... 456,769 (456,769) $ 6.92 

Balance at December 31, 1999.. ..................... 613,888 1,919,130 $ 4.56 

The range of exercise prices for common stock options outstanding and options exercisable at Decem- 
ber 31, 1999 is as follows: 

Options Outstanding 
Weiehted 
A&se Weighted 

Remainin# Avenge 
Range of Number of C0ntracto.l Exercise 

$ 0.20 28 1,475 1.3 years $ 0.20 
Exercise PI& Shams Lire PriOZ - 
$ 1.61 307,490 6.7 years $ 1.61 
d 1.W-$4.11 154.090 4.4 vears $ 3.32 ........ I ~~~~ 

~.~~ ~ 
I 

$ 4.12-$5.48 222,800 9I2 years $ 5.08 
$ 5.49-$7.24 455,525 6.2 years $ 5.58 
$ 7.25 394,750 6.1 years $ 7.25 
$ 1.26-$10.99 53,000 7.9 years $ 9.07 
$1 1.00-$13.71 50,000 6.0 years $13.44 
$ 0.20-$13.71 1,919,130 5.8 years $ 4.56 
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Optlams Exduhlc  
Weiehted 
A&ge 

Nmmbcr of Exercise 
Sham Price - 

’ 281,475 $ 0.20 
307,490 $ 1.61 
136,590 $ 3.25 
30,000 $ 5.04 

369,025 $ 5.50 
359,875 b 7.25 
36,750 $ 9.12 
46,250 $13.64 

1,567,455 $ 4.31 



T-NETM, JNC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(a) Stockholders' Equity (continued) 1 .  

The Company has not recorded compensation expense for stock options granted. The Company has 
computed the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS 123 for stock options granted using the Black- 
Scholes option-pricing model. The assumptions are as follows: 

YRU Ended D m n b a  31. 
1999 1998 1997 

. .  
Risk free interest rate ............ i . .  ................... 5.43% . 5.24% 5.24% 
Expected dividend yield ................................ - - - 

' .  
Expected lives (in years) ................................ 
Expected volatility. 
Weighted average remaining contractud l i e  of options 

5.2 years 5.0 years 4.9 years 
.................................... 70.0% 70.0% 70.0% .. 

outstanding.. ............................. t . .  ........ 5.8 years 4.9 years 5.2 years 
Weighted average fair value at grant date ................. $3.24 $2.35 $4.11 

The pro forma effects of applying SFAS 123 are as follows for the years ended December 31, 1999,1998, 
and 1997: 

Net earnings (loss): 
As reported .............................................. $(10,247) $ 270 $1,745 . 
Pro forma ................................................ (11,118) (847) 620 
Net earnings (loss) per common share: . .  

As reported: 
Basic ................................................ $ (0.82) $ 0.02 , .$  0.15 
Diluted .............................................. (0.82) 0.02 . 0.13 

Basic ................................................ $ (0.89) $(0.07):' $ 0.05 
Pro fo'tmz 

Diluted .............................................. (0.89) (0.07) 0.05 
, \ .  

The Black-Scholes option-pncing model was developid for use in estimating the fair value of traded 
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option-pricing models'require 
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility. Because the Company's 
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because 
changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's 
opinion, the existing models to not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its 
employee stock options. . .  

In July, 1997, the Board of Directors emended the 1993 IS0 Plan and the 1991 NSO Plan to provide that 
the Compensation Committee may amend certain outstanding options with an exercise price in excess of the 
current market price in orderto modify the exercise price to the current market price or. greater. On 
August 11, 1997, the Compensation Committee re-priced the exercise price to $7.25 per share for. certain 
outstanding options under the 1993 IS0 Plan and the 1991 NSO Plan having an exercise price equal to or 
greater than $7.50 prior to such re-pricing. This re-pricing affected 773,500 options granted.under these Plans. 
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. "'.:,NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

(7) Segment Information 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosum About Segments of an Enterprise and 
Related Information, ("SFAS 131") establishes standards for the way public enterprism report information 
about operating segments in annual financial statements. SFAS 131 &so establishes standards for disclosures 
about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. 

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the SpeakEZ Division, and 
Internet Services Division. The Company evaluates perfomancc based on earn8gs (loss) before income 
taxes.' Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortization, and interest expense. 
There are no intersegment sales. .The Company's reportable segments are specific business units that offer 
different products and senrices. They are managed separately because each business requires different 
technology and marketing strategies. The accounting policies of the reportable segments am the same as those 
described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Segment information is as follows: 

Yara Ended December 31, 
1999 1998 1597 

(pmoumts in thhoasndr) 

Revenue from external customers 
Corrections Division. ................................ $ 71,596 $ 67,609 $ 61,629 
SpeakEZ Division ................................... 93 632 676 
Internet Services Division ............................ 1,546 

Corrections Division ................................. $ (5,796) $ 6,816 $ 7,031 
SpeakEZ Division.. ................................. (2,518) (3,996) (2,664) 
Internet Services Division 104 - - 

. CorrectionsDivision ................................. $ 10,651 $ 9,250 $ 8,841 
. SpeakEZ Division.. ................................. 969 924 705 

Internet Services Division - - .  - 
Corrections Division.. ............................... $ (1.217) $ (1,762) $ (1,216) 

- - 
Operating income (loss): 

............................ 
Depreciation and amortization 

............................ 
Interest and other inwme (expense) 

SpeakEZ Division .................................... (920) (592) (367) 
Internet Services Division .............................. - . -  

ComctionsDivision ............... : ..... ........... $ (8,029) $ 5,054 $ 5,815 
SpeakEZ Division. .................... .:. ........... (3,439) . (4,588) (3,031) 

Revenue from external customers:. .... ;. ............... $ 73,235 $ 68,241 $ 62,305 
Operating income (loss) .... .:. ....................... .(8,210) 2,820 . .4,367 
Depreciation and amortization,, ....................... '11,620 . 10,174 . . .  9,546 

- .  
. .  

. .  

Segment earnings (loss) before tax: " .' ' ' ' 

- - Internet Services Division ............................ 104 
. .  Segment e8rnings (loss) before tax: 

Interest and other (income) expense, net.. .............. . '2,137 2,354 ' .. 1,583 
Segment earnings (loss) before tax .................... (11,364) 466 2,784 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(7) Segment Information - (continued) 

. . .  
December 31, 

1998 1999 
(smaunts in thornsands) 

- _ .  

Segment assets: 
Corrections Division. .......................................... $ 66,943 $ 60,880 

SpeakE.Z Division 3,599 4,599 ........................................... 
.................................... - Internet Services Division . -  

Substantially all of the Company’s reportable segment, revenue is derived within the United States. 
Revenue as a percentage of total revenue attributable to significant customers for the years ended 
December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is as follows: 

1999 1998 1998 - - -  . .  
AT&T ............................................................. .13% 16% .19% 
BeU Atlantic ...................................................... 10 12 12 
SBC Communications ................................................ 10 12 13 

There was no intersegment revenue for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997. Unallocated 
amounts to arrive at net earnings (loss) included income tax expense (benefit) of $( 1.1 17,000). $196,000, and 
$1,039,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Consolidated total.assets 
included eliminations of approximately $12,976,000 and $11,084,000 as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. Eliminations consist of intercompany receivables in the Corrections Division and intercompany 
payables in the SpeakEZ Division related solely to intercompany borrowing of the S p e e Z  Division. 

(8) Income Taxes 

. .  

1ncome.tax expense for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 is as follows (amounts in 
thousands): . 

1998 1997 -- 1999 
, .  

Current: 
Federal ............................................... $ (1,007) $ 186 $ 439 

Total ............................................. (1,198) 211 469 
State ................................................. (191) 25 30 

................................................ 72 ( 5 5 )  516 
Deferred 

Federal 
State : ; i :. 40 54 

Total 
Total income tax expense (bcnefit) .................. $ (1,117) $196 $1,039 

-- 

........... . ............ ................... . . . .  -- 9 . .  

............................................ 81 -!,.!2) - 570 , .  . 

~- . .  
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(8) Income Taxes (continued) 

Income taxes dfler from the expected statutory income .tax benefit, by applying the US federal income 
tax rate of 34% to pretax earning for the years ended December 31,1999,1998 and 1997 due to the following 

1998 ,1957 -- 1999 

Expected statutory'income tax (benefit) expense ............. $ .(3,864) $ 273 $ 947 
Amounts not deductible for income tax ...................... 699 107 97 
State taxes, net of federal benefit.. ......................... (377) 43 55 
Change in valuation allowance.. ........................... 2,263 (113) 
Other. ................................................. 162 (114) ' (60) 
Total income tax expense (benefit). ............. .:. ........ $ (1,117) $ 196 $ 1,039 

- 
- -  --  

The tax effects of temporary diicrences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred income tax 
assets and deferred income tax liabilities as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 are presented below: 

1999 jm -. .,- 
(amountr In thouamda) 

Deferred income tax assetx 
Net operating loss carryforwards ...................................... '$  6,556 ,$  5,406 
Allowance for doubtful accounts .................................... 1,488 716 

. ........................................................... '680 . 458 Other 
Total gross deferred income tax assets ............................... 8,724 6,580 
Less valuation allowance.. .......................................... (3,727) .(1,464) 

- - .  

4,997 5,116 - -  
Deferred income tax liabilities: 

.Intangible assets, due to difference in book/tax basis .................... (474) (1,068) 
-Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation.'. ... (1,867) (2,523) 
Other assets, due to differences in bookltax basis.. .................... (359) '.(563) 
Total ' p s s  deferred tax liabilities ................................... (2.700) (4,154) 

$ 2,297 $ 962 - -  - -  
At December 31, 1999, the Company had net operating loss canyfomards for tax purposes aggregating 

approximately $17.4 million which, if not utilized to reduce taxable income in future periods, expire at various 
dates through the year 2010. Approximately $1.3 million of the net opcrating loss carryforwards arc subject to 
certain rules limiting their annual usage. The Company believes these annual limitations will not ultimately 
affect the Company's ability to use substantially all of its net operating loss carryforwards for income tax 
purposes. 

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or the entire net 
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company has offset a portion of its deferred tax asscts with a 
valuation allowance. The valuation allowance will be adjusted in the future based on the Company's projected 
taxable income. 

The exercise of stock options, which have been granted under the Company's 1991 NSO stock option 
plan gives rise to compensation which is included in the taxable income of the applicable option bolder and is 
deductible by the Company for federal and state income tax purposes. The income tax benefit associated with 
the exercise of the NSO options is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital when realized. 
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T-NETIX, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(9) Commitments and cnntingencies 

The Company leases office space under operating lease agreements. Rent expense under operating lease 
agreements for the years ended December 31, 1999,1998 and 1997 was approximately $1,034,000, $930,1330, 
and $629,000, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements for each of the next 
five years are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Year ending December 31: 
Zoo0 ................................................... ~ $ 976 
2001 .................................................... 72 1 
2002 .................................................... 229 
2003 .................................................... 5 

- $1,931 Total minimum lease payments.. ...................... - 
The Company is involved in various legal proceedings of a nature considered normal to its business. It is 

the Company’s policy to accrue amounts related to these legal matters if it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred an amount that is reasonable estimable. In the opinion of management, all matters are of such a 
nature as would not have a material affect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows of the Company if resolved unfavorably. 
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A 

T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(Unaudited) 

ASSETS 
. .  Cash and cash equivalents.. .............................................. $ 298 

Accounts receivable, net’. ................................................. 18,009 
Prepaid expenses ....................................................... 1,569 
Inventories ............................................................. 525 

Total current assets ............................................. 20,401 
Property and equipment, net.. ............................................ 37,454 
Goodwill. net. ......................................................... 6,035 
Deferred tax asset ...................................................... 2,243 
Intangible and other assets, net.. .......................................... 8,497 

Total assets.. .................................................. $ 74,630 

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK 
AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable. .................................................... $ 15,810 
Accrued liabilihes .................................................... 4,715 
Current portion of long term debt ...... : ................................ 30,659 

Total current liabilities .......................................... 51,184 

Total liabilities ................................................. 51,261 

. . .  

Long-term debt ...................................................... 77 - 
Series A redeemable convertible prefemed stock, $1,000 per share, stated value, 

3,750 shares authorized; issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000, liquidation 
preference of $3,811,000 at June 30, 2000 ................................ 1,842 

Stockholders’ equity: 
Common stock, $.01 stated value, 70,000,000 shares authorized; 12,733,084 and 

12,699,400 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000 and December 31, 
1999, respectively .................................................. 127 

Additional paid-in capital .............................................. 37,566 
Accumulated deficit. .................................................. (16,166) 

Total stockholders’ equity ........................................ 21,527 
Commitments and contingencies 

Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred 
stock and stockholders’ equity ........................................ $74,630 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 

$ 118 
16,459 
1,038 

710 
18,325 
33.858 
6,401 
2,297 
9,252 

$ 70,133 

$ 13,187 
5,924 
7,366 

26,477 
21,555 
48,032 

- 

127 
35,791 

(13,817) 
22,101 

$ 70,133 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(Unaudited) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

Revenue: 
Telecommunicatic :rvices ............................... $11,953 $10,065 $22,077 $19,879 
Diect call provisioning ................................... 7,247 7,021 14,492 13,523 

- 12,561 - Internet services ......................................... 6,743 
............................... 826 660 1,208 2,128 Equipment sales and other.. ---- 

Total revenue., .................................... 26,769 17,746 50,338 35,530 ---- 
Expenses: 

Operating costs: 
Telecommunications services ............................. 5,360 4,263 9,861 8,506 
Direct call provisioning ................................. 6,751 6,468 13,268 12,548 

- 10,648 - Internet services ....................................... 5,550 
......................... 332 214 549 879 Cost of equipment sold and other 

Total operating costs.. .............................. 17,993 10,945 34,326 21,933 
Selling, general and administrative .......................... 4,583 3,259 8,321 6,619 
Research and development.. ............................... 1,569 1,253 2,744 2,613 
Depreciation and amortization .............................. 3,117 2,848 6,166 5,670 

Total expenses.. ................................... 27,262 18,305 51,557 36,835 
Operating loss ................................... (493) (559) (1,219) (1,305) 

Merger transaction expenses. ................................. - (827) - (1,017) 
Interest and other expense, net.. .............................. (673) (633) (1,027) (1,117) 

Loss before income taxes.. .......................... (1,166) (2,019) (2,246) (3,439) 
Income tax benefit (expense) ................................. 810 (103) (103) 1,398 

Net  loss^. ......................................... (1,269) (1,209) (2,349) (2,041) 
(430) - Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock. ... (430) 

Net loss applicable to common stock .................. $(1,699) $(1,209) S(2.779) $(2,041) 
Basic and diluted loss per common share. ...................... ---- $ (0.13) $ (0.10) $ (0.22) $ (0.17) 

common share.. ......................................... 12.701 12,372 12,756 12,318 

---- 

---- 
---- 

- - 

- _ _ - -  
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per 

---- ---- 
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Unaudited) 

... 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

2000 1999 
(Amoune in 
Thousands) 

-- 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net loss ................................................................. $(2,349) $(2,041) 

Deferred income tax benefit .............................................. 54 (1,398) 
Gain on sale of property and equipment .................................... (265) -. 

Accretion of discount on subordinated note payable 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization.. ........................................... 6,166 5,670 

........................... - (17) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(1,550) 1,905 Accounts receivable, net ............................................... 
. (531) (199) Prepaid expenses ..................................................... 

Inventories 185 (1,015) 
(24) , (294) Intangibles and other assets.. ........................................... 

Accounts payable.. ................................................... 2,623 3,235 
Accruedliahihtles (1.209) (521) 

Cash provided by operating activities.. ......................... i ....... 3,083 5,342 

(6,295) 
285 - 
- (894) 

Cash used in investing activities ....................................... (8,252) (7,189) 

Net proceeds from (payments on) lime of credit ................................... (807) 3,390 
Proceeds from debt ....................................................... 3,750 1,716 
Payments of debt ......................................................... (1,128) (2,271) 

.............................. 75 256 Common stock issued for cash under option plans 
Cash provided by financing activities., ................................. 5,349 3,091 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ........................................ 180 1,244 
................................ 118 678 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period.. 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ...................................... $ 298 $ 1,922 

Cash paid for interest.. ...................................................... $ 617 $ 1,088 

Cash paid for income taxes.. ................................................. $ 103 $ 113 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 

........................................................... 

. . .  . .................................................... 
-- 

Cash used in investing activities: 
Purchase of property and equipment.. ......................................... (8,537) 

Other investing actlvitles 
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment.. ............................ . . .  ................................................... -- 

-- 
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, net.. ............. 3,459 - 
. .  

-- 
-- 
-- 
-- -- 
-- -- 
-- 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Unaudited) ^. . . ~ . , .  

. , ~  
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Unaudited Financial %atements . j ,  

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments which, in the opinion 
of management, are necessary to reflect a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations of 
T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) for the interim periods presented. All adjustments, in the opinion 
of management, are of a normal and recurring nature. Some adjustments involve estimates, which may require 
revision in subsequent interim periods or at year-end. The financial statements have been presented in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. Refer to notes to consolidated financial statements, which appear 
in the 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Company’s accounting policies, which are pertinent to these 
statements. 

~. 
Basis of Presentation 

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. (“Gateway”), a 
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As a result of the merger, Gateway became a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to the merger, the Company changed its year-end from July 31 to December 31. 
Gateway’s year-end was December 3 1. 

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests. As a result, the Company’s financial statements have 
been restated to combine Gateway’s financial statements as if the merger had occurred at the beginning of the 
earliest period presented. Information concerning common stock and per share data has been restated on an 
equivalent share basis. 

Liquidity 

The Company incurred losses from continuing operations in the three and six months ended June 30,2000 
of $1.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively and had a working capital deficit of $30.8 million at June 30;.2000. 
In July 2000. the Company and its lenders amended the Company’s credit agreement to revise certain financial 
covenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2W1, and as a result the debt with the bank has been 
classified as a current liability. The Company raised $7.5 million of additional financing in April 2000. The 
financing consisted of preferred stock and subordinated debt. The net proceeds of approximately $7.2 million 
were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. 

The Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations, including renegotiating contract pricing 
and cost control measures, in order to carry out the remainder of its fiscal 2000 business plan. However, there can 
be no assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from operations &d the Company 
may require additional financing to fund operations. In the event additional financing is required, the Company 
may not be able to obtain financing on terms acceptable to the Company and it may have to curtain operations. 

~ 

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share 

Earnings (loss) per common share is presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS 128). Basic earnings per share excludes the impact of 
potentially dilutive securities and is computed by dividing income or loss available to common shareholders by 
the weighted average number of common shares .outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect 
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or 
converted into common stock. There is no difference between basic and diluted net loss per share since ’ 
potentially dilutive securities from the conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock and the exercises of 
options and warrants are anti-dilutive for all periods presented. The calculations of diluted net loss per common 
share for the three and six months ended June 30, Zoo0 and 1999, do not include 991,000 and 748,000 and 
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T-NJZTJX, INC. AND SLJBSIDURIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 

385,000 and 424,000, respectively, of potentially dilutive securities, including common stock options and 
warrants and redeemable conveltible preferred stock. 

Recent Accounting Pmnouncemenrs 

In March 2o00, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued interpretation No. 44 
“Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation - an interpretation of APB Opinion 
No. 25 (“FIN 44”). This interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for certain stock option transactions 
and subsequent amendments to stock option transactions. FIN 44 is effective July 1,2000, but certain provisions 
cover specific events that occur after either December 15, 1998 or Janusuy 12, 2000. The Company does not 
expect that the application of FIN 44 will have a material effect on its financial position or results of operations. 

In December 1999, the SEC released StaRAccounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in 
Financial Statements”, which provides guidance on the recognition. presentation, and disclosure of revenue in 
financial statements filed with the SEC. Subsequently, the SEC released SAB IOIA, which delayed the 
implementation date of SAB 101 for the Company until the quarter ended December 31, 2000. The Company 
does not expect the application of S A B  101 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of 
operations. 

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133). “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended 
by SFAS No. 137. SFAS 137 defers the effective date of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2000. SFAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivanve 
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as 
derivatives), and for hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires companies to recognize all derivatives as either assets 
or liabilities, with the instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in fair value, gains or 
losses, depends on the intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation. The Company does not expect 
the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations. 

Reclassifcation 

Certain amounts in the 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2000 presentation. 

(2) Balance Sheet Components 

Accounts receivable consist of the following: 

June 30, December 31, 

(Amounts in Thousands) 
2000 1999 

Accounts receivable, net: 
Trade accounts receivable.. ..................................... $13,684 $11,797 
Direct call provisioning receivable. ............................... 5,343 7,268 
Customer reimbursable receivable ................................ 377 152 
Otherreceivables .............................................. 213 - 231 

19,617 20.048 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ...................... (1,608) (3,589) 

$18.009 $16,459 - = 
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(2) Balance Sheet Components - (Continued) 

Bad debt expense was $1.5 million and $1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively, and $2.8 million and $2.9 million for the SIX months ended June 30, Zoo0 and 1999, respectively. 

Property and equipment consists of the following: 

June 30, December 31, 
2OoO 1999 

(Amounts in Thousands) 

Property and equipment, net: 
Telecommunicauons equipment ................................. $ 60,160 $ 55,487 

Office equipment ............................................. 10,696 9,169 
78,985 71,997 

$ 37,454 $ 33,858 

Construction in progress ...................................... 8,129 7,341 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ (41,531) (38,139) 

Intangible and other assets consist of the following: 

Intangible and other assets, net: 
Patent license rights ............................................... :... 

Capitalized software development costs .......... ~ ........................ 
Purchased technology assets. ............................................. 

Acquired software technologies ........................................... 
Patent defense and application costs ...................................... 
Deposits and long-term prepayments. ..................................... 
Other ............................................................... 

Less: Accumulated amortization ................................... 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following: 

June 30, December 31, 

(Amounts in Thousands) 

$ 3,325 $ 3,325 
2,487 2,4S7 

663 65 1 
1,79 1 1,783 
2379 2,583 
1,512 1,183 
1,386 __ 1,649 

13,743 13,661 

$ 8.497 $ 9,252 

2OoO 1999 

(5,246) (4,409) 

- __ 

Accrued liabilities: 
Deferred revenue and customer advances ................................... $1,667 $2,114 
Compensation related. ............................................. : .... 875 1,175 
Other ................................................................ 2,173 __ 2,635 

$4,715 $5,924 - = 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(3) Debt 

Debt consists of the following: 

, .., :. t 

Debt: 
Bank lines of credit ........................................... 
‘Subordinated note. payable ...................................... 
Other ....................................................... 

Less current portion ........................................... 
Noncurrent portion ...................................... 

$26,704 $28,461 
3,750 - 

282 460 
30,736 28.921 
30,659 7,366 

$ 77 $21,555 - ~ - - 

Bank Line of Credit 

In September 1999, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Credit 
Facility”) with its commercial hank. The Credit Facility provides for maximum credit of $40 million subject to 
limitations based on financial covenant calculations. The Credit Facility is comprised of a one year LIBOR 
component of $15 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.0% at June 30, 2o00, a one month LIBOR 
component of $7 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.0% at June 30,2000; and $4.7 million at the Bank‘s 
prime rate, 9.5% at June 30, plus 1.25%. As of June 30, 2O00, the total interest rates on borrowings under the 
bank Credit Facility ranged from 8.8% to 10.75%. The Company also pays a fee of 0.40% per annum on the 
unused portion of the line of credit. 

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Under the terms of the 
Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios and other financial covenants. These 
ratios include a debt to a four quarter rolling earnings before interesL taxes and depreciation and amortization 
(EBlTDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (interest and debt payments) to EBITDA, and minimum quarterly 
EBITDA. The agreement also prohibits the Company from incurring additional indebtedness. 

In July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended its credit agreement to provide for revised financial 
covenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2001 and as a result the debt with the bank has been 
classified as a current liability. The Company raised $7.5 million of additional financing in April ZOOO. The net 
proceeds were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. As of June 30,2000, the Company is 
in compliance with all terms of the agreement with the lenders. The maximum amount of credit under the credit 
facility available to the Company is dependent upon the Company’s financial performance. Based on the financial 
covenants, the Company’s maximum borrowings at June 30, 2000 are less than $40 million. 

Subordinated Note Payable 

The Company issued a subordinated note payable of $3.75 million. due April 30, 2001, to a director and 
significant shareholder of the Company. The note bears interest at prime rate plus one percent per annum (10.5% 
at June 30, 2000) which is payable every six months beginning in October 2000. The lender also received 
wanants to purchase 25,000 shares of common stack at an exercise price of $6.05 per share for a period of five 
years. The estimated fair value of the stock purchase warrants, using the Black-Scholes model, has been recorded 
as deferred financing fees and is being amortized over the term of the debt. 
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T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
.~ 

(4) Stockholders Equity :.’ 

Preferred Stock Offering. 

In April 2000, the Company issued 3,750 shares of our Series A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock 
and a five-year stock purchase warrant exercisable for 340,909 shares at $6.60 per share of the Company’s 
common stock to RGC International Investors, LLC, a fund managed by Rose Glen Capital Management LP. The 
Company allocated the fair value of the warrants ($1.1 million) to additional paid-in capital and recognized a 
discount on the preferred shares issued. The net proceeds from the issuance were $3.5 million, net of offering 
costs. The Company also issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock to the broker on the sale of 
the preferred stock at an exercise price of $6.60 per share. The stock purchase warrants were valued at fair value 
($163,000) using the Black-Scholes model and are being amortized as accretion of discount on preferred stock 
over the term of the preferred stock. 

The preferred stock is convertible into common stock at a variable conversion price based on the closing 
market price of the common stock during a pricing period of 5 consecutive trading days during the 22 consecutive 
trading days preceding conversion, up to a “fixed” conversion price. The fixed conversion price is the lower of 
$6.05 per share or 110% of the market price of the Company’s common stock for 10 days ending on August 17, 
2000 if it is below $6.05. With limited exceptions relating to a change in control of the Company, during the six 
month period after the issuance of the preferred stock, the preferred stock is not convertible into the common 
stock unless the market price of the common stock equals or exceeds the fixed conversion price. After the six- 
month period, the Company has the right repurchase the preferred stock upon receipt of notice to convert the 
preferred shares into common stock, if the market price of the common stock is less that the fixed conversion 
price. 

The preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the Company, subject to certain restrictions, if the market 
price of the Company’s common stock is less than or equal to $4.00 for 10 consecutive days. The redemption is 
subject to notice requirements. The cash redemption price is the greater of 120% of the liquidation preference, or 
a value based on the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the preferred stock 
multiplied by the highest closing price of the common stock during a period from notice of redemption until the 
redemption date. Redemption of the preferred stock is mandatory at its maturity date, April 17, 2003; upon 
assignment of all‘assets of the Company; bankruptcy; failure to maintain a Nasdaq listing; or failure to meet 
certain other terms set forth in the preferred stock agreements. 

The preferred stock is non-voting and pays no dividends. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding 
up of the Company, or major transaction, including merger or sale or disposal of SO% of the company, the holders 
of the preferred stock are entitled to a liquidation preference of 8% per annum. 

The Company accounted for these transactions in accordance with ETIF 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible 
Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios.” The company 
recognized an increase in additional paid in capital in the amount of $771,000 for the value of the beneficial 
conversion. The Company will accrete the resulting discount in the preferred stock to loss applicable to common 
stockholders over the six-month period beginning April 17, 2000. 

(5) Segment Information 

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the SpeakEZ Division, and the 
Internet Senices Division. The Company evaluates performance based on earnings (loss) before income taxes. 
Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortization, and interest expense. There are no , 
intersegment sales. The Company’s reportable segments are specific business units that offer different products 
and services. They are managed separately because each business requires different technology and marketing 
strategies. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of 
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June 30, December 31, 
2000 1999 

T-NETM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

(5) Segment Information - (Continued) 

significant accounting policies. Segment information for the three and six months ended June 30,2000 and 1999 
is as follows (amounts in thousands): 

Three Months Ended Six Montbs Enda 
June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 2000 1999 ---- 
REVENUE FROM EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS: 

Corrections Division .............................. $20,006 $17,712 $37,677 $35,471 
SpeakEZ Division.. .............................. 20 34 100 59 
Internet Services Division ......................... 6,743 

Corrections Division.. ............................ S(1.149) $ 15 $(2,203) $ 64 
SpeakEZ Division ................................ (538) (574) (928) (1,369) 
Internet Services Division ......................... 1.194 

Corrections Division.. ............................ $ 2,887 $ 2,611 $ 5,699 $ 5,173 

- 12,561 -, 

$26,769 $17,746 $50,338 $35,530 ---- - _ _ _ - -  
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS): 

- 1,912 - - - _ _ _ -  
$ (493) $ (559) $(1,219) $(1,305) '.  - _ _ _ _ _ -  ---- 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION: 

.............................. 237 467 491 
Internet Services Division ......................... ---- 

$ 3,117 $ 2,848 $ 6,166 $ 5,670 

SpeakEZ Division.. 230 - - - - 

===============_I 

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSE, NET: 
Corrections Division., ............................ $ (367) $ (4261 $ (442) $ (703) 
SpeakEZ Division ................................ (306) (207) (585) (414) - - - - Internet Services Division ......................... ---- 

$ (673) $ (633) $(1,027) $(1,117) 
===i_ 

SEGMENT EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME 
TAXES: 

Corrections Division .............................. $(1,516) $(1,238) $(2,645) $(1,656) 

- 1,912 - 
-__  $(1,166) $ (2,019) $(2,246) $ (3,439) 

SpeakEz  Division.. .............................. (844) (781) (1,513) (1,783) 
Internet Services Division ......................... 1,194 ---- ---- 

SEGMENT ASSETS: 
Corrections Division.. ......................................... $72,382 $66,534 
SpeakEZ Dlvlslon ............................................. 2,248 . . .  3,599 

Internet Services Division ....................................... - 
$74,630 $70,133 

- - 

- ======= 

There was no intenegment revenue for the three months ended June 30,2000 and 1999. Unallocated amounts 
to arrive at net earnings (loss) included an income tax (expense) benefit of $(103,000) and $1,398,000 for the Six 
months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Consolidated total assets included eliminations Of 

approximately $12.7 million and $13.0 million as of June 30, Zoo0 and December 31, 1999. respectively. 
Eliminations consist of intercompany receivables in the Corrections Division and intercompany payables in the 
SpeakEZ Division related solely to intercompany borrowing of the SpeakEZ Division. 
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

For a comprehensive understanding of our financial condition and performance, this discussion should he 
considered in the context of the condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and other 
information contained herein. 

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for fomard-lookjng 
statements. Certain information contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this Form IO-Q includes forwadlooking statements. Important 
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forwadlooking statements include, 
hut are not limited to, those listed under the caption “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 1999, which may affect the potential technological obsolescence of existing systems, the 
renewal of existing site specific Corrections and Internet Service Division customer contracts. the ability to retain 
the base of current site specific customer contracts, the ability to perform under contractual performance 
requirements, the continued relationship with existing customers, the ability to win new contraas for our products 
and services, including Lock & Track”’, Contain” and our Internet Services Division, the ability of our existing 
customers, including ATBrT, to maintain their market share of the inmate calling market, the successful 
integration of Gateway Technologies, Inc. into our business, our ability to penetrate the market for jail 
management systems, the ability to reduce expenditures in the SpeakEZ Division and to successfully license 
voice verification and fraud prevention technology, the effect of economic conditions, the effect of regulation, 
including the Telecommunications Act of 1996 that could affect our sales or pricing, the impact of competitive 
products and pricing particularly in the our Corrections Division, our contlnuing ability to develop hardware and 
software products, commercialization and technological difficulties, manufacturing capacity and product supply 
constraints or difficulties, actual purchases hy current and prospective customers under existing and expected 
agreements, and the results of financing efforts, along with the other risks detailed therein. 

Overview 

. 

Acquisition of Gateway Technologies, Inc 

On June 14, 1999, we completed our merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. or “Gateway” by exchanging 
3,672,234 shares of our common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Each share of Gateway was 
exchanged for 5.0375 shares of our common stock. In addition, outstanding Gateway stock options were 
converted at the same exchange rate into options to purchase approximately 379,000 shares of our common stock. 

The merger constituted a tax-free reorganization and has been accounted for as a pooling of interests under 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16. Accordingly, all prior period information contained in this 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations has been restated to 
include the combined results of operations, financial position and cash flows of T-NETIX and Gateway as though 
Gateway had always been a part of T-NETIX. 

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375,341 shares of common stock to 
certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for their terminating a royalty agreement with Gateway. The royalty 
agreement related to automated call processing technology and intellectual property rights that were assigned to 
Gateway by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The termination of the royalty owners’ interests 
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been recorded at its estimated fair value, or 
$2,487,000. The fair value is based on the value of T - N E W  common stock at February 10, 1999 (date of the 
Merger Agreement), or $6.625, multiplied by the number of shares issued in exchange for termination of the 
royalty Owners’ interests. The intangible asset has an estimated useful life of 10 years, the remaining term of the 
underlying patent. 

Corrections Division 

In the Corrections Division we derive revenue from three main sources: telecommunications services, direct 
call provisioning and equipment sales. Each form of revenue has specific and varying operating costs associated 
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with such revenue. Selling, general and administrative expenses, along with research and development and 
depreciation and, amortization are common expenses regardless of the revenue generated. 

Telecommunications services revenue is generated under long-term contracts. Pricing historically provided 
for transaction fees paid on a per-call basis. We are paid a prescribed fee for each call completed and additional 
fees for validating phone numbers dialed by inmates. The per-call charge is primarily for the provisioning of 
specialized call processing services to telecommunications service providers for their customers, the correctional 
facilities. However, recently we entered into a contract amendment with a significant customer to record revenue 
as a percentage of gross revenue earned by the customer, subject to certain adjustments. This new pricing was an 
effort by us to have our pricing remain flexible and not be effected by factors that affected call volumes. Pursuant 
to the amendment, we also recognized certain telecommunications expenses that were previously reimbursable 
charges to this customer. These charges were previously reimbursable costs to the customer. Our telecommunica- 
tions service provider customers include AT&T, Bell Atlantic, Qwest (formerly US WEST), SBC Communica- 
tions (including Ameritech), BellSouth, Sprint and GTE. 

As a direct inmate call provider, we buy “wholesale” call services to be re-sold as collect calls. We use the 
services of third parties to bill the collect calls. We then enter into direct contracts with the correctional facilities 
and generally pay to the correctional facilities commissions on the gross billed revenue. The rates charged by us 
are consistent with the collect call rates charged by the incumbent local exchange carrier or “ L E V  in the same 
service area and the predominant interexchange carrier or “IXC”. Since all calls originating from the inmate 
phones are collect calls, each phone generates higher-than-industry-average revenues. The uncertainty of the 
creditworthiness of the billed parties results however in a higher-than-industry-average uncollectible cost. 

Equipment sales and other revenue includes the sales of our inmate calling system and the DRS system. The 
sales of the inmate calling system are generally made to only one customer. We then charge monthly maintenance 
fees to keep the system operational. Sales to this customer can vary depending upon the success of the customer 
in winning contracts with correctional facilities. 

Internet Services Division 

In December 1999, we entered into a master service agreement with US WEST !NTERPRISE America, Inc. 
to provide interLATA Internet services to US WEST customers. The contract, which commenced December 1, 
1999, calls for us to buy, resell and process billing of Internet bandwidth to this customer. The contract with 
US WEST is for a minimum of sixteen months. 

We recognized significant Internet Services revenue and related costs for the three and six months ended 
June 30,2000 under this agreement. Our gross margin on these services was 18% and 15% for the three and six 
months ended June 30,2000, respectively. The gross margin is effected by the negotiated base management fee 
and contract incentive payments, The costs associated with this contract are primarily the costs for Internet 
bandwidth. There were no capital outlays required to begin provisioning these services. The Company anticipates 
adding personnel to expand the service offerings of the Internet Services Division beyond the scope of the current 
contract. 

Extension of the contract beyond the minimum sixteen-month period is dependent upon the regulatory 
approval process in various states. In the event that US WEST receives regulatory approval to provide inter-LATA 
telecommunications services during or after the initial sixteen month period, our Internet Services revenue could 
be reduced significantly or eliminated. 

Speaker Veri$cation Division 

We completed consolidation of our Spes operations to our Englewwd facility in February 1999. The 
reorganization included a change in marketing strategy from a direct customer sales strategy to a kchnOlOgy 
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets a specifically developed software product to a 
specific, end user customer. The strategy is then to find other specific customers who have similar operating 
systems and market this product to these customers. In contrast, a technology licensing strategy focuses on a 
larger scale customer who can integrate the SpeakEZ software product into its existing product line. This larger 
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customer, such as a computer manufacturer, would then be responsible for the product integration and ultimate 
delivery to the end user customer. 

Even with the changes in marketing strategy, there can be no assurance that the products based on the 
SpeakEZ technology will achieve the necessary market acceptance or become widely adopted. The market for 
speaker verification software has only recently begun to develop. As is typical in the case of a new and rapidly 
evolving market, demand and market acceptance for recently introduced products and services are subject to a 
high level of uncertainty. Our voice print revenue has been minimal to date. 

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compared to June 30, 1999 

The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenue for the 
three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

2000 E - 
Revenue: 

Telecommunications services. ............................................. 
Direct call provisioning .................................................. 
Internet services .............................. : .......................... 
Equipment sales and other.. .............................................. 

Total revenue ..................................................... 

Operating costs. ........................................................ 
Selling, general and administrative ......................................... 
Research and development ............................................... 

Expenses : 

Depreciation and amortization.. ..................................... .; .... 
'Operating loss ................................................... 

Merger transaction expenses .............................................. 
Interest and other expense. ............................................... 

45% 57% 
27 39 
25 - 
3 4 

100 100 

67 62 
17 18 
6 7 

12 16 

(2) (3) 
(5) 

- (2) 3, 

- -  

- -  
- 

Loss before income taxes .......................................... (4) (1 1) 
............................................ 4 

Net loss ......................................................... (5) (7) 

Net loss applicable to common stock.. ............................... 

Income tax (expense) benefit.. - (1) - 

Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock - (2) --= ................ 
(7)% _Il)% - - -  

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the three months ended June 30,2000 was $26.8 million, an increase of 
51% over $17.8 million for the corresponding prior period. This increase was primarily attributable to the 
commencement of Internet services, as well as increases in telecommunications services revenue and equipment 
sales and other offset, in part by decreases in direct call provisioning revenue. 

The 19% increase in telecommunications services revenue to $12.0 million in the three months ended 
June 30,2000, from $10.1 million for the corresponding prior period, was due primarily to an increase in contract 
prices. We changed our pricing to a significant customer whereby revenue is calculated as a percentage of our 
customer's gross revenue versus a transaction fee per call. In addition we experienced an increase in revenue due 
to call volume increases, primarily due to the addition of new sites. 

Direct call provisioning revenue increased to $7.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2000, from 
$7.0 million in the corresponding prior period. This increase was due to the addition of sites for which we were 
provisioning the long distance service. The addition of sites is primarily a result of our being successful in 
competitive bidding arrangements for contracts directly with correctional institutions. 

The Internet Services contract commenced in December 1999. Funire revenue is dependent upon the base of 
subscribers and contract incentive payments. Internet gross margin for the three months ended June 30,2000 was 
18%. 
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Equipment sales and other revenue increased 25% to $826,000 for the three months ended June 30, Zoo0 
from $660,000 in the corresponding prior period. Such sales are primarily associated with one telecommunica- 
tions service provider customer and are dependent upon the timing of installations for this customer and the 
customer’s success rate in  its territory. In the three months ended June 30. 2000 we had sales of approximately 
$676,000 to this telecommunications service provider customer. .We do not expect significant equipment sales in 
the near future. 

Operating cosrs. Total operating costs were $18.0 million in the three months ended June 30, 2000, an 
increase of 64% from $10.9 million in the corresponding prior period. The increases were primarily due to the 
commencement of Internet services as well as increases in telecommunication services and the cost of equipment 
sold and other expenses offset by a reduction in direct call provisioning expenses. 

Operating costs of telecommunications services primarily consist of service administration costs for 
correctional facilities, including salaries and related personnel expenses, communication costs and inmate calling 
systems repair and maintenance expense, Operating costs of telecommunications services also include costs 
associated with call verification procedures, primarily network expenses and database access charges. Operating 
costs associated with direct call provisioning include the costs associated with telephone line access, long 
distance charges, commissions paid to correctional facilities, costs associated with uncollectible accounts and 
billing charges. Internet Services expense consists of Internet bandwidth costs. Cost of equipment sold and other 
includes primarily the purchase price of equipment which is resold. Other equipment cost components was 
minimal. Voice print operating costs include royalty charges, the cost of hardware and the cost of services which 
amounts are reflected as other operating costs. 

The following table sets forth the operating costs and expenses for each type of revenue as a percentage of 
corresponding revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

zwo 1999 - -  
Operating costs: 

Telecommunications services. ............................................. 45% 42% 
Direct call provisiomng .................................................. 93 92 
Internet services ........................................................ 82. . - 
Cost of equipment sold and other.. ........................................ 40 32 

. . .  

Operating costs associated with providing telecommunications services as a percentage of corresponding 
revenue was 45% for the three months ended June 30,2000, an increase from 42% for the corresponding prior 
period. The increase was due primarily to cost increases, Total telecommunications services operating expenses 
were $5.4 million for the three months ended June 30,2000 and $4.3 million for the corresponding prior period. 
The increase in 2000 is due to new services being provisioned for a significant custnmer as part of a contract 
amendment and due to increases in personnel costs. The increase included bonus costs associated with our line 
installation bonus program. The bonus program ended as of June 30,2000. Also, the addition of new personnel in 
the National Service Center and other operational support functions contributed to cost increases. To a lesser 
extent, increases in travel and contract labor contributed to the overall cost increase. With the addition or 
personnel at our National Service Center and based on contract negotiations we believe we can reduce field 
operations personnel in the near future. 

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of applicable revenue increased slightly to 93% of revenue for 
the three months ended June 30, 2000 an increase from 92% for the corresponding prior period. These COSU 

include increases due to site commissions and transmissions costs offset by a reduction in bad debt expense 
because of improved collections. 

The contract for Internet services commenced in December 1999. Future revenue increases are dependent 
upon the base of subscribers and additional contract incentive payments. Cost of equipment sold and other 
increased in the three months ended June 30, 2000 and also increased as a percentage of corresponding revenue 
from the corresponding prior primarily due to the change in the revenue mix for equipment sales. 
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $4.6 mil- 
lion for the three months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $3.3 million for the corresponding prior period. 
Selling, general and administrative expenses associated with the Corrections Division were $4.5 million for the 
three months ended June 30,2000 compared to $3.1 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase in the 
three months ended June.30,2000 was primarily due to increases in salary and benefits for additional personnel, 
fmm raises for existing personnel and the installation bonus program. Other expenses, including travel and 
professional fees, increased due to the integration of Gateway's operations. We anticipate selling, general and 
administrative expenses to remain consistent with current levels in the near future. 

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $1.6 million in the three 
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $1.3 million for the corresponding prior period. Research and 
development expenses for the Corrections Division were $1.3 million in the three months ended June 30,2000 
and $1.1. million in the corresponding prior period. The increase was primarily due to increased persomel 
expenses. We anticipate research and development expenses to remain consistent for the remainder of the year. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense was $3.1 million in the 
three months ended June 30,2000. an increase from $2.8 million for the corresponding prior period. The increase 
was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new site installations. 

Merger Tmnsaction Expenses. These expenses were directly related to the merger with Gateway and 
amounted to approximately $827,000 for the three months ended June 30, 1999. Merger transaction expenses 
consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related 
charges. 

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, net was $673,000 for the three months ended 
June 30, 2O00, an increase from $633,000 for the corresponding prior period. Included in other income in the 
three months ended June 30, 2000 is a gain of approximately $46,000 on the sale of used telecommunications 
equipment. Interest expense' was $719,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2000, and $633,000 for the 
corresponding prior period. The increase in 2000 was attributable to an increase in the average amount of 
indebtedness outstanding and an increase in interest rates. The average debt balance increased primarily due to 
the increase in capital expenditures. 
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Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compared to June 30, 1999 

The following table sets for& certain statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenue for the six 
months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

zoo0 1999 - -  
Revenue: 

Telecommunications services. ............................................. 44% 56% 
Direct call provisioning .................................................. 29 38 
Internet services ........................................................ 25 - 
Equipment sales and other.. ..................... ...................... 2 6 

Total revenue .................................................... 100 100 
- -  

Expenses: 
Operating costs ......................................................... 68 62 

Research and development ............................................... 5 7 

Operating loss ................................................... (2) (4) 
(3) Merger transaction expenses - 

.............................................. (2) 3, Interest and other expense.. - 
Loss before income taxes .......................................... (4) (10) 

Income tax (expense) benefit.. ............................................ - 4 

Net loss ......................................................... (4) (6) 
Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock A) = 

Selling, general and administrative.. ....................................... 17 19 

Depreciation and amortization.. ........................................... 12 16 - -  
.............................................. 

- -  

................ 
Net loss applicable to common stock., ............................... (3% 2)% - - -  

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the six months ended June 30,2000 was $50.3 million, an increase of 42% 
over $35.5 million for the corresponding prior period. This increase was primarily attributable to the 
commencement of Internet services, as well as increases in telecommunications services revenue and direct call 
provisioning revenue offset in part by decreases in equipment sales and other. 

n e  11 % increase in telecommunications services revenue to $22.1 million in the six months ended June 30, 
2000, from $19.9 million for the corresponding prior period, was due primarily to an increase in contract prices. 
We changed our pricing to a significant customer whereby revenue is calculated as a percentage of our customer's 
gross revenue versus a transaction fee per call. In addition we experienced an increase in revenue due to call 
volume increases, primarily due to the addition of new sites. 

Direct call provisioning revenue increased 7% to $14.5 million for the six months ended June 30,2000, from 
$13.5 million in the corresponding prior period. This increase was due to the addition of new sites primarily for 
which we are provisioning the long distance service. The addition of sites is primarily a result of our being 
successful in competitive bidding arrangements for contracts directly with correctional institutions. 

The Internet Services contract commenced in December 1999. Future revenue increases are dependent upon 
the base of subscribers and additional contract incentive payments. 

Equipment sales and other revenue decreased 43% to $1.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000 
from $2.1 million in the corresponding prior period. Such sales are primarily associated with one telecommunica- 
tions service provider customer and are dependent upon the timing of installations for this customer and the 
customer's success rate in its temtory. In the six months ended June 30, 2000 we had sales of approximately 
$1.1 million to this telecommunications service provider customer. The reduction for the six months ended 
June 30,2000 from the corresponding prior period is due primarily to the timmg of purchases by this customer. 

Opemting costs. Total operating costs were $34.3 million in the six months ended June 30, 2o00, an 
increase of 57% from $21.9 nullion in the corresponding prior period. The increases were primarily due to the 
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commencement of Internet services as well as increases in telecommunication services and direct call 
provisioning expenses offset.by a reduction in the cost of equipment sold and other expenses. 

Operating costs of, .telecommunications services primarily consist of service administration costs for 
correctional facilities, including salaries and related personnel expenses, communication costs and inmate calling 
systems repair and maintenance expense. Operating costs of telecommunications services also include costs 
associated with call verification procedures, primarily network expenses and database access charges. operating 
costs associated with direct call provisioning include the costs associated with telephone line access, long 
distance charges, commissions paid to correctional facilities, costs associated with uncollectible accounts and 
billing charges. Internet Services expense consists of Internet bandwidth costs. Cost of equipment sold and other 
includes primarily the purchase price of equipment which is resold. Other equipment cost components was 
minimal. Voice print operating costs include royalty charges, the cost of hardware and the cost of services which 
amounts are reflected as other operating costs. 

The following table sets forth the operating costs and expenses for each type of revenue as a percentage of 
corresponding revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

Zoo0 1999 - -  
Operating costs: 

Telecommunications services. ............................................. 45% 43% 
Direct call provisioning.. ................................................ 92 93 
Internet services. ....................................................... 85 - 
Cost of equipment sold and other.. ........................................ 45 41 

Operating costs associated with providing telecommunications services as a percentage of corresponding 
revenue was 45% for the six months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from 43% for the corresponding prior 
period. The increase was due to cost increases. Total telecommunications services operating expenses were 
$9.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and $8.5 million for the corresponding prior period. The 
increase in 2000 is due to new services being provisioned for a significant customer as part of a contract 
amendment and due to increases in personnel costs. The increase included bonus costs associated with our line 
installation bonus program. The bonus program ended as of June 30,2000. Also, the addition of new personnel in 
the National Service Center and other operational support functions contributed to cost increases. To a lesser 
extent, increases in travel. consulting services, repairs and maintenance contributed to the overall cost increase. 

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of applicable revenue decreased to 92% of revenue for the six 
months ended June 30.2000 from 93% in for the corresponding prior period. This decrease was primarily due to 
~a reduction in bad debt expense because of improved collections. 

The contract for Internet services commenced in December 1999. Cost of equipment sold and other 
decreased in the six months ended June 30,2000 but increased as a percentage of corresponding revenue from the 
corresponding prior primarily due to the change in the revenue mix for equipment sales and voice print sales. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $8.3 mil- 
lion for the six months ended June 30,2000 compared to $6.6 million for the corresponding prior period. Selling. 
general and administrative expenses associated with the Corrections Division were $8.1 million for the six 
months ended June 30.2000 compared to $6.2 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase in the six 
months ended June 30,2000 was primarily due to increases in salary and benefits for additional personnel. from 
raises for existing personnel and the installation bonus program. Other expenses increased due to travel, 
communications and professional fees due to the integration of Gateway operations. 

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $2.7 million in the six 
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $2.6 million for the corresponding prior period. Research and 
development expenses for the Corrections Division were $2.4 million in the six months ended June 30,2000 and 
$2.2 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase was primarily due to higher travel and consulting 
costs. 
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Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense was $6.2 million in the 
six months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from $5.7 million for the corresponding prior period. The increase 
was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new site installations. 

Merger Tramaction Expenses. These expenses were directly related to the merger with Gateway and 
amounted to approximately $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 1999. Merger transaction expenses 
consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related 
charges. 

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, net was $1.0 million for the six months ended 
June 30, 2000, a decrease from $1.1 million for the corresponding prior period. Included in other income in the 
six months ended June 30, 2000 is a gain of approximately $334,000 on the sale of used telecommunications 
equipment. There was $59,000 of miscellaneous other income in the six months ended June 30, 1999. Interest 
expense was $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000, and $1.0 million for the corresponding prior 
period. The increase in 2000 was attributable to an increase in the average amount of indebtedness outstanding 
and an increase in interest rates. The average debt balance increased primarily due to the increase in capital 
expenditures and business acquisitions. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Cash Flows 

We incurred losses from continuing operations for the six months ended June 30,2000 of $2.3 million and 
had a working capital deficit of $30.8 rmllion at June 30, 2000. In July 2000 our lenders amended our credit 
agreement to provide for revised financial covenants. Additionally, we raised $7.5 million of debt and equity 
financing in April 2000. The net proceeds were used to reduce the outstanding balance on our credit facility. We 
are taking steps to improve our cash flow from operations, including renegotiating contract pricing and cost 
control measures in order to carry out the remainder of our fiscal 2000 business plan. However, there can be no 
assurance that we will be successful in increasing our cash flow from operations and we may require additlonal 
financing to fund our operations. In the event additional financing is required, we may not be able to obtain 
financing on terms acceptable to us and we may have to curtain operations. 

We present the following information for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 and as of June 30, 
2000 and December 31, 1999: 

2000 1999 
(Amounts in 
Thousands) 

Cash provided by operating activities.. ................................ $ 3,083 $ 5,342 
Working capital deficit. ............................................. $(30,783) $(8,152) 

We have historically relied upon commercial borrowings, operating cash flow and the sale of equity 
securities to fund our operations and capital needs. Cash provided by operations decreased 42% to $3.1 million 
for the six months ended June 30,2000 from $5.3 million in the corresponding prior period primarily due to an 
increase in the net loss, reductions in accounts payable, and increases in accounts receivable. The increase in the 
working capital deficit is primarily due to the classification of the bank credit facility. The current maturity of the 
facility is April 30, 2001. 

F’urchases of property and equipment were $8.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2000 compared to 
$6.3 million for the corresponding prior period. The 36% increase in purchases of property and equipment was 
primarily due to additional inmate calling system installations and upgrades to existing systems. 

Debt and Equity 

We have been funding our operations primarily from available borrowings under a line of credit and by using 
cash provided by operations. Due to our capital requirements for new installations and the merger with Gateway, 
in September 1999, we entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (“Credit Facility”) with a 
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commercial bank. The maximum amount of credit under the credit facility available to the Company is dependent 
upon the Company’s financial performance. Based on the financial covenants, the Company’s maximum 
borrowings at June 30,2000 were less than $40 million. In July 2000 our lenders amended our credit agreement 
to revise certain financial covenants. In addition, we raised $7.5 million of debt and equity financing in April 
2000. The net proceeds of approximately $7.2 million were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the Credit 
Facility. 

We anticipate that our capital expenditures in 2000 will he consistent with 1999 based on our anticipated 
growth in installed systems at correctional facilities. We believe our Credit Facility and cash flows from 
operations will be sufficient in order for us to meet our anticipated cash needs for anticipated new installations of 
inmate call processing systems and upgrades of existing systems and to finance our operations for at least the next 
12 months. However, there can he no assurance that we will be successful in increasing our cash flow from 
operations and we may require additional financing to fund operations. In the event additional financing is 
required, we may not be able to obtain financing on terms acceptable to us and we may have to curtain 
operations. 

Item 3, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 

We are exposed to interest rate risk as discussed below. 

Interest Rate Risk 

We have current debt outstanding under the credit facility of $26.7 million at June 30, 2000. The credit 
facility bears interest at differing rates including, $22 million at LIBOR plus 4.0% and the remaining balance at 
the prime rate, 9.5% at June 30, 2000, plus 1.25%. Interest on LIBOR rate loans is payable at the end of the 
interest period applicable to the loan but not longer than every six months. Interest on prime rate loans is payable 
every six months. Since the interest rates on the loans outstanding are variable and are reset periodically, we are 
exposed to interest rate risk. An increase in interest rates of 1% would increase estimated annual interest expense 
by approximately $280,000 based on the amount of borrowings outstanding under the line of credit at June 30, 
2000. 
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PART Il OTHER INFORMATION . ,  

. . .  

Item 1. Legal ~prbeeedings 

From time to time we have been, and expect to continue to be subject to various legal and ad&s&tive 
proceedings or various claims in the normal c o m e  of our business. We believe the ultimate disposition of these 
matters will not have a material affect on our financial condition, liquidity, or results of operations. 

In a case brought in the First Judicial District Court of the State of New Mexico, styled ‘Valdez v. State of 
New Mexico. et. al., the complaint joins as defendants the State of New Mexico, several political subdivisions.of 
the State of New Mexico and several inmate telecommunications service providers, including T-NETU( ,and 
Gateway. The complaint includes a request for certification by the court of a plaintiffs’ class action consisting of 
all persons who have been billed for and paid for telephone calls initiated by an inmate confined in a jail, prison, 
detention center or other New Mexico correctional facility. The complaint alleges violations of New Mexico 
Unfair Practices Act, the New Mexico Antitrust Act and the New Mexico Constitution, and also alleges unjust 
enrichment, constructive trust, economic compulsion, constructive fraud and illegality of contracts, all in 
connection with the provision of “collect only” inmate telecommunications services. Although management 
believes the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is low, there can be no assurance that a judgment against a 
class of defendant providers will not ultimately be entered. 

In a case brought in the Superior Court of Washington for King County, styled Sandy Judd, et al. v. 
American Telephone and Telegraph Company, et. al., the complaint joins as several inmate teleconununications 
service providers, including T-NETIX. The complaint includes a request for certification by the court of a 
plaintiffs’ class action consisting of all persons who have been billed for and paid for telephone calls initiated by 
an inmate confined in a jail, prison, detention center or other Washington correctional facility. The complaint 
alleges violations of the Washington Consumer Protection Act and requests an injunction under the Washington 
Consumer Protection Act and common law to enjoin further violations. Although management believes the 
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is low, there can be no assurance that a judgment against a class of 
defendant providers will not ultimately be entered. 

Gateway is a defendant in a case brought in United States District Court Western District of Kentucky at 
Louisville, styled Gus “Skip” Daleure, Jr., et a1 vs. Commonwealth of Kentucky, et al. The complaint in this case 
joined as defendants several states, political subdivisions of states, and inmate sewice telecommunications 
providers and was filed contemporaneously with a request for certification by the court of a nationwide plaintiffs’ 
class action consisting of all persons who have received and paid for telephone calls initiated by an inmate at a 
prison, jail or other correctional institution for the provision of “collect only” inmate telecommunications 
services. The complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relief and money damages in an unstated amount for 
alleged violations of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Robinson-Patman Act and the US. Constitution. The district 
court held, on motions to dismiss; Kentucky did not have personal jurisdiction over defendants not located in or 
doing business in the state of Kentucky; that telephone calls are not goods or commodities and thus are not 
subject to the antitrust provisions of the Robinson-Patman Act; that Plaintiffs did not state a claim for relief under 
the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment; and that Plaintiffs had not shown any harm in support 
of its antitrust claim under Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The trial judge did not. however, dismiss plaintiffs 
prayer for injunctive relief, despite these findings. The case is currently subject to appeal and cross appeal in the 
Second Circuit Court of Appeals. Although Gateway believes the District Court holding will not be ovenurned it 
is possible the in may be and there can be no assurance that a judgment against a class of the providers will not 
ultimately be entered. 

Item 2. Changes in Securiiies and Use of Proceeds 

None 

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities 

None. 
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

On May 12, 2000 the Company held its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to elect four directors of the 
Company to hold office until the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their respective successors are 
duly elected and qualified and to ratify the selection of KPMG LLP; independent auditors, as auditors of the 
Company for the year ending December 31. 2000. The directors were elected and KPMG was ratified as 
independent auditors with the following voting results; 10,712,465 FOR 113,281 AGAINST; and 400 
WITHHOLD. 

Item 5. Other Information 

None. 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibits 

10.12 -First Amendment to Loan Agreement $40,000,000 Revolving Line of Credit from 
Bank One, Colorado, NA, COBANK, ACB, and INTRUST Bank, NA dated July 11, 
2000. 

27 -Financial Data Schedule. 

(b) The Company filed a Form 8-K dated April 19, 2000 reporting the following: 

Item 5 on Form 8-K regarding additional equity financing. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

T-NET=, INC. 
(Registrant) 

By: 1st ALVYN A. SCHOPP 
Alvyn A. Schopp 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date August 14, 2000 
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MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 



T-NETIX, Inc 

INFORMATION CONCERNING DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

The names, ages (as ofDecember 31, 1999), positions with the Company and the business 
experience over the past five years of each of the directors and executive officers is set forth 
below. Each director has served continuously with the Company since the date indicated below. 

NAME 

Daniel M. Carney 
Robert A. Geist 
James L. Mann 
Martin T. Hart 
John H. Burbank, I11 
Daniel J. Taylor 
W.P. Buckthal 
B. Holt Thrasher 
Richard E. Cree 
Thomas E. Larkin 
John Giannaula 

AGE 

68 
59 
65 
63 
36 
56 
72 
39 
50 
42 
38 

POSITION(S) 

Chairman and Director 
Director (2) 
Director (2) 
Director (1) 
Director (1) 
Director (1) 
Director (2) 
Director 
COO and Director (3) 
President (4) 
VP Finance and Secretary 

SINCE 

1991 
1994 
1995 
1997 
1999 
1999 
1999 
1999 
1999 
2000 
1994 

TERM TO 
EXPIRE 

2002 
2002 
2002 
2000 
2000 
2001 
2000 
2000 
2001 
NIA 
NIA 

(1) Member of the Audit Committee. 

(2) Member of the Compensation Committee 

(3) Mr. Cree stepped down as the Company’s Chief Operating Oficer in March 2000 but 
remained with the Company in a non-executive officer position. 

(4) Mr. Larkin was appointed President in March 2000 

Mr. Carney has served as a director of the Company since 1991 and as Chairman since 
1998. Since 1997, Mr. Carney has been a private investor. He co-founded Pizza Hut, Inc. in 
1958 and served as Chairman of the Board until 1975 and as a director through 1977 when Pizza 
Hut was acquired by PepsiCo, Inc. 

Mr. Geist has served as a director of the Company since August 1994. Since 1979, he has 
been Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Rage Administrative & Marketing 
Services, Inc., a management company for Pizza Hut franchises. Since 1991, he has been a 
director of Beauty Warehouse, Inc. (a franchisor of beauty salons and professional beauty 
products). 

Mr. Mann became a director of the Company in September 1995. Since 1986, Mr. Mann has 
been the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SunGard Data Systems, Inc., a provider of 
proprietary application software systems and processing services for investment support 
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activities and a provider of computer disaster recovery services. From 1983 to 1986 he was 
SunGard’s President and Chief Operating Officer. From 1981 to 1983 he was President of 
Bradford National Corporation, a computer services and software concern. 

Mr. Hart has served as a director of the Company since 1997. Mr. Hart is a Denver-based 
businessman and investor. Mr. Hart serves as a director of P.J. America, a food service company, 
Pacific National Financial Group, a hank holding company, MassMutual Corporate Investors, an 
investment company, MassMutual Participation Investors, and investment company, Optical 
Securities Corporation, a manufacturer of security systems, Ardent Software, Inc., a data 
management company, and Schuler Homes, Inc., a real estate development company. 

Mr. Burhank has served as a director ofthe Company since February 1999. 
Since 1999, Mr. Burbank has been the Director of Research at St. Claire Capital, 
a hedge find. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Burhank was the Director of Research at 
Valuevest Management Co., a global value hedge find. From 1993 to 1994 Mr. 
Burhank was a joint venture partner in Odwalla, Inc., a fresh juice company. Mr. 
Burbank holds an MBA from Stanford Graduate School of Business and a 9. A. from 
Duke University. 

Mr. Taylor has served as a director ofthe Company since February 1999. Since 1996 Mr. 
Taylor has been a private investor. From 1993 to 1996, Mr. Taylor was Chairman of the Board of 
Advantage Companies, Inc., a holding company with subsidiaries that operated rental-purchase 
stores. From 1977 to 1992, Mr. Taylor was Chairman of the Board of various Pizza Hut 
franchise companies, in addition, Mr. Taylor served as the Senior Vice President of Finance for 
Pizza Hut. Inc. 

Mr. Buckthal has served as a director of the Company since June 1999. Mr. Buckthal has 
been an independent geologist and oil and gas producer in Amarillo, Texas for the past 35 years. 
Prior to that, he was a geologist for Hamilton Brothers for three years and for Texaco for ten 
years. He is a member of the American Association of Petroleum Geologists and has been active 
in that organization’s Division of Professional Affairs, including serving as national board 
secretary. He has also served on the Alumni Advisory Counsel of the School of Geology and 
Geophysics at the University of Oklahoma. M e r  serving two years in the Navy during World 
War 11, Mr. Buckthal attended the University of Oklahoma and received a ES degree in geology. 

Mr. Thrasher has served as a director of the Company since June 1999. Mr. Thrasher is a 
managing director of Broadview International, LLC, an investment banking firm. Mr. Thrasher 
oversees the Communications Software and Telecommunications Services practice of 
Broadview. Before joining Broadview, Mr. Thrasher was a Consultant with Omnipoint, a PCS 
service provider and developer of wireless communications equipment. Earlier, he was a vice 
president at Smith Barney and prior to that an associate at Brown Brothers Haniman, both 
investment banking firms. Mr. Thrasher serves as a director of Signalsoft Corporation, a wireless 
location service provider and the Kairos Foundation, a non-profit organization. Mr. Thrasher 
holds a MBA degree from the International Institute of Management Development in Lausanne, 
Switzerland and a E.A. degree from Colby College. 
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Mr. Cree served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company from June 1999 through 
March 2000, and has been a director of the Company since June 1999. From 1989 to 1999, Mr. 
Cree was the Chief Executive Officer and President of Gateway Technologies, Inc. From 1962 to 
-1988, Mr. Cree was Executive Vice President of American Republic Bancshares, a bank holding 
company based in New Mexico. From 1971 to 1962, Mr. Cree served as President and Chief 
Executive Officer of C-Five, a telecommunications company specializing in the manufacture and 
development of peripheral telecommunications equipment. 

Mr. Larkin has served as the President of the Company since March 2000. From 1999 to 
2000 he served as Executive Vice President of Sales. From June 1997 to 1999 Mr. Larkin was 
the Vice President Government and Carrier Relations with Rostelsat Jupiter Investments, an 
international trade broker. From January 1997 to June 1997 Mr. Larkin was Regional Sales 
Manager for Palmer Wireless, a wireless communications services company. From 1992 to 1997 
Mr. Larkin was the Director of Business Development and Government Sales for Ramoil 
Management Company, an international trade broker. From 1991 to 1992 Mr. Larkin was 
Director of National Accounts for Nextel Communications, a wireless communications services 
company, From 1983 to 1991 Mr. Larkin served in varying positions including General Manager 
for McCaw Cellular Communications, a wireless communications services company. 

Mr. Giannaula has served as Vice President Finance of the Company since June 1994 and 
as secretary since July 1994. Prior to joining the Company, he spent 10 years as an accountant 
with KPMG LLP. He is a Certified Public Accountant in the State of Colorado. 



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 

T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. has sufficient financial capability to provide the requested 
service in the State of Florida and has sufficient financial capability to maintain the requested service 
and to meet its lease or ownership obligations In support of T-NETIX Internet Services, 1nc.k stated 
financial capability, a copy of Audited Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 1998 
and December 3 1, 1999, and Unaudited Financial Statements for the six months ended June 30,2000 
for T-N!3TIY Inc. is attached to its application. T-NETIX Internet Services, lnc. intends to hnd the 
provision of service through internally generated cash flow and cash contributions Eom its parent 
company, which is publicly held, if required. T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. also has the ability to 
borrow finds, if required, based upon its financial capabilities, and the parent company is committed to 
providing any necessary capital if needed to provide service in the State of Florida. 


